






WORKSESSION ITEM # 1 
 

 

City Council Meeting 
November 19, 2015 

 
Executive Summary 

 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Work session regarding the proposed Bliss Senior Living project. 
 
Background: Council heard a rezoning case for approximately 11 acres at the 

northwest corner of Lakeline Blvd. and Crystal Falls Blvd. on 
September 17, 2015.  The requested PUD rezoning was denied 4-3.  
The applicant is seeking guidance from Council regarding 
appropriate uses of the site prior to resubmitting a zoning 
application. 

 
Origination: Applicant: Adam Diskin, DH&G | Insite Builders 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Attachments:  

1. Applicant materials 
2. Location map 

 
 
Prepared By: Tom Yantis, Assistant City Manager 
  
  



Page 1 of 2 

 
 
Benefits a 1-story 86 unit community  
over a 4-story 186 unit community: 
!!
The shift in plans results in a much lower cost per square foot 
and a superior product.  
 
Although the number of units decreases by 54% (100 units less), the 
rentable square footage is only reduced by 36%.  This is achieved by 
shifting from smaller, less marketable 1-bedroom flats with interior 
hallways to 2-bedroom one-story homes with garages and private 
outdoor space.   
 
Significant construction cost savings are achieved by: 
• Reducing approximately 17,500 square feet in non-revenue 

generating community space including hallways, stairwells, 
entryways, activity rooms, and elevators required in the 4-story 
buildings 

• Eliminating of structural requirements to support large mechanical 
systems on the roof 

• Eliminating four elevators 
• Reducing sprinkler, fire block/stops and fire-treated/rated product 

requirements 
• Changing code requirements by eliminating residential units on top of 

each other 
• Reducing grading as smaller building can more naturally flow with the 

slope of the land 
• Employing local, single family home subcontractors versus higher 

priced out-of-town commercial firms 
• Reducing construction start to finish time by approximately a 6-

months  
 
 
 
 
 

!

r e s o r t   l i v i n g 

liss B  i 

!



Page 2 of 2 

The Casita product with shared amenities is much more desirable than 
the standard high-density apartments originally included in our plans. 
The currently planned community is superior for us and more desirable 
for the local community, because of: 
 
• Faster expected lease-up 
• Higher expected rents 
• Higher expected occupancy levels with lower turnover 
• Drastically reduced visibility along Crystal Falls Parkway and Lakeline 

Boulevard 
• Lower impact on services with similar property tax income 
• Elimination of community concerns over imposing 4-story buildings 
 
We anticipate that many of our residents will be related to nearby 
homeowners.   We will be an integral part of the community and want 
to add value to the area. 
!



A
SS

IS
TE

D
 L

IV
IN

G

EX
H

IB
IT

 C
 - 

C
O

N
C

EP
TU

A
L 

SI
TE

 L
AY

O
U

T









N LAKELINE BLVD

BOVINA D
R

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

OV
ER

LA
ND

 D
R

CARMINE DR

CRESSON TRL

GR
EE

NI
NG

 W
AY

GRAFORD ST

WI
LD

FIR
E

MULEDEER RUN
CHRISTINE DR

UHLAND DR

WIGWAM

MI
MO

SA
 LN

LIONS DEN
ROWDY LOOP

DEEPWOODS TRL

HOLLOWBACK DR

PRIMROSE LN

LOYAL FRIEND DR

HUMBLE LIVE DR

REKLAW LN

LOCAL REBEL ST

STANDING TALL DR

BE
AS

LE
Y C

V

N LAKELINE BLVD

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200

Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 15-Z-013 Attachment #5
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Bliss at Mason Hills PUD

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



 
                                                                    MINUTES 

 
                                                               WORKSESSION  
                                                                        and                                                                          

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS 

Pat Bryson Municipal Hall 
201 North Brushy Street ~ Leander, Texas 

Thursday ~ November 5, 2015 at 6:00 PM  
 

  
  
 
 

WORKSESSION: 
 
1.   Discussion on establishment of a child safety zone ordinance within the City Limits of Leander, Texas 
      Mayor Fielder called the Worksession to order at 6:00 pm. 
 
      A discussion was held. 
 
      The Worksession adjourned at 6:50pm 
 
REGULAR MEETING: 
 
1. Open meeting, Invocation, Pledges of Allegiance 

Mayor Fielder called the meeting to order at 7:00 pm and welcomed those in attendance 
Pastor Peter Horn delivered the invocation 
 

2. Roll Call 
All present 
 

3. Staff Comments:  
Steve Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director informed council of an event at the Leander VFW on 
Saturday, Nov. 7th to honor veterans and raise money for the Veterans Park Fund. 

  4.  Citizen Comments:  Three (3) minutes allowed per speaker  
             Please turn in speaker request form before the meeting begins 
             No comments 
 
       5.  Recognition of Leander High School Band for Advancing to UIL State Marching Contest 
            Sponsored by Mayor Fielder and Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette 
            Eric Zeno, Economic Development Manager spoke about the Leander Band 
            Mayor Fielder read the certificate and congratulated the Leander High School Band  
 
       6.  Proclamation recognizing November 2015 as “National Caregiver Awareness Month” 
            Sponsored by Mayor Fielder and Mayor’s Committee on Persons with Disabilities 
            Council Member Shepherd read the Proclamation and presented it to Kirsten Lynch 
 
       7.  Proclamation recognizing November 2015 as “National Alzheimer’s Disease Awareness Month” 
            Sponsored by Mayor Fielder and Mayor’s Committee on Persons with Disabilities 
            Council Member Seiler read the Proclamation and presented it to Kirsten Lynch 

    Mayor   – Christopher Fielder                  Place 4 – Ron Abruzzese 
    Place 1 – Andrea Navarrette (Mayor Pro Tem)                  Place 5 – Jeff Seiler 
    Place 2 – Michelle Stephenson                                 Place 6 – Troy Hill  
    Place 3 – Shanan Shepherd    City Manager – Kent Cagle 
                                                                              

 



 
       8.  Proclamation recognizing November 21, 2015 as “Kids Helping Kids” Coat Drive Day 
            Sponsored by Mayor Fielder 
            Council Member Hill read the Proclamation and presented it to Pastor McDonald and his 
            Wife who started the program 
 
       9.  Presentation from Alan Bojorquez with Scenic Hill Country 
           Alan Bojorquez gave a presentation about Scenic Hill Country 
 

 

 
10.  Approval of the minutes: October 15, 2015  
 
11.  Special Event Permit for the 2015 Christmas Parade and Tree Lighting 
 
12.  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision Infrastructure Improvements for Bryson Section 1. 
       Phase 1A 
 
13.  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision Infrastructure Improvements for Oak Creek Phase 1,  
       Section 1 
 
14.  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision Infrastructure Improvements for Oak Creek Phase 2.  
       Section 1 
 
15.  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Subdivision Infrastructure Improvements for Oak Creek Phase 2,  
       Section 2  
 
16.  Consider approval of an expenditure for the purchase of replacement computer workstation hardware,  
       software, and peripherals from Dell Marketing, LP contract (DIR-SDD-1951) and Software House  
       International contract (DIR-SDD-2503) through the State of Texas Cooperative Purchasing Program 
 
17.  License Agreement for the installation and maintenance of entry signage, landscaping, signage, irrigation,  
       decorative street signs and lights, fencing, and screening walls located within the City right-of-way within  
       the Palmera Ridge Subdivision 
 
18.  Consider Dedication and Acceptance of Travisso Section 1 Offsite Utilities Water and Wastewater  
       Improvements 
 
19.  Consider Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between City of Leander and the Leander Independent  
       School District (LISD) for the joint use of fiber optic cable infrastructure 
 
        Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette pulled # 19 from the consent agenda. 
 
        Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette to approve the consent agenda items #10 through 18.  
        Second by Council Member Shepherd.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
        Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette recused herself from item # 19. 
 
        Motion made by Council Member Seiler to approve item # 19.  Second by Council Member Hill. 
        Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
 
      Mayor Fielder moved to item # 22 at this time 
 
 
 
 

CONSENT AGENDA: ACTION 

 



 
 
 

 
 
 

20.  Convene into executive session pursuant to Section 551.071, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05,  
       Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding: 
 

1) Legal issues related to the City's boundaries and the future growth of the City 
2) Cause No. 15-0088-C277, Premas Global Leander I v. City of Leander, et al., In the 277th Judicial 

District Court of Williamson County, Texas 
 

        Mayor Fielder moved to executive session at 8:30pm 
        Council convened into open session at 9:05 pm 

 
21.  Reconvene into open session to take action as deemed appropriate in the City Council’s discretion regarding: 
 

1) Legal issues related to the City’s boundaries and the future growth of the City 
     No action taken 
 
2) Cause No. 15-0088-C277, Premas Global Leander I v. City of Leander, et al., In the 277th Judicial 
     District Court of Williamson County, Texas 
     No action taken 

 
 
  

22.  Public Hearing on Zoning Case 15-Z-025: Consider a zoning change for 18.598 acres, more or less, 
       located NW of the intersection of RM 1431 & Travisso Parkway from Interim zoning SFR-1-B, Single 
       Family Rural to PUD, Planned Unit Development, Leander, Travis County, Texas 
       Applicant: Nancy Stroder on behalf of Travisso, LTD (Taylor Morrison of Texas is the managing partner) 
       Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained    
 
        Nancy Stroder, applicant explained the request      
 
       Action on Zoning Case 15-Z-025: amending Ordinance 05-018, the Composite Zoning Ordinance for  
       18.598 acres, more or less, located NW of the intersection of RM 1431 & Travisso Parkway from Interim  
       zoning SFR-1-B, Single Family Rural to PUD, Planned Unit Development, Leander, Travis County, Texas 
 
        Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette to approve with P&Z recommendations.  Second by  
        Council Member Seiler. Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
23.  Public Hearing on Zoning Case 15-TOD-Z-022: Consider a zoning change of one tract of land for 19  
       acres, more or less, generally located 2,100 feet to the west of the intersection of US Hwy 183 and San  
       Gabriel Parkway on the north side of San Gabriel Parkway from PUD/TOD, Planned Unit Development/ 
       Transit Oriented Development to amend the PUD to designate the base zoning district as SFR-2-A, Single 
       Family Rural as permitted by the SmartCode, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
       Applicant: Hill Country Bible Church 
       Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained          
     
       Action on Zoning Case 15-TOD-Z-022: amending the SmartCode for 19 acres, more or less, generally  
       located 2,100 feet to the west of the intersection of US Hwy 183 and San Gabriel Parkway on the north side 
       of San Gabriel Parkway from PUD/TOD, Planned Unit Development/Transit Oriented Development to amend  
       the PUD to designate the base zoning district as SFR-2-A, Single Family Rural as permitted by the  
       SmartCode, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
 
       Motion made by Council Member Shepherd to approve with P & Z recommendation of SFR-3-A.  
       Second by Council Member Hill. Motion passes, all voting “aye” 

PUBLIC HEARING: ACTION 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 



 
 
 
24.  Public Hearing on Zoning Case 14-Z-029: Consider a zoning change of two tract of land for 53.985 acres,  
       more or less, located at 10744 E. Crystal Falls Parkway from Interim zoning SFR-1-B, Single Family Rural 
       to GC-2-A, General Commercial, Leander, Williamson County, Texas 
       Applicant: Bowman Consulting (W.L. Gabler) on behalf of Premas Global Leander, LLC 
       Tom Yantis, Asst. City Manager explained   
 
        Bill Gabler with Bowman Consulting gave a presentation 
        Rick Castleberry, Property owner spoke about the zoning    
    
       Action on Zoning Case 14-Z-029: amending Ordinance 05-018, the Composite Zoning Ordinance for  
       53.985 acres, more or less, located at 10744 E. Crystal Falls Parkway from Interim zoning SFR-1-B, Single 
       Family Rural to GC-2-A, General Commercial, Leander, Williamson County, Texas   
 
       Motion made by Mayor Fielder to approve GC-2-A, LC-2-A, LO-2-A and SFT-2-A as recommended  
       by Staff and the Planning & Zoning Commission.  Second by Council Member Shepherd. 
 
       Mayor Fielder asked for a vote to call the question and call for a vote.  Mayor Fielder and Council 
       Member Shepherd voted for and Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette, Council Member Stephenson, Council 
       Member Abruzzese, Council Member Seiler and Council Member Hill voted against.        
 
       Mayor Fielder called for the vote on the motion.  Motion passes, 6 to 1 with Council Member Hill 
        voting against. 
 
25.  Public Hearing on an application for a franchise for Austin Wood Recycling, Cedar Park, Texas to provide 
        brush and mulch recycling services within the jurisdiction of the City of Leander 
        Robert Powers, Finance Director explained 
 
       Action on An ordinance granting Austin Wood Recycling certain powers, licenses, privileges and franchise  
       to operate a business to collect and haul brush, tree, and mulch within the city and designated area of  
       the city’s ETJ for the purpose of recycling such materials; to use the streets, avenues, easements, rights-of- 
       way, alleys, highways, sidewalks, and bridges in said city for a period of five (5) years; prescribing certain  
       rights, duties, terms and conditions; providing for the payment to the City of a percentage of gross receipts  
       of grantee from its operations; providing for acceptance; and providing for certain related matters. 
       Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette to approve.  Second by Council Member Stephenson. 
       Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 

  
 
 

          
     26.  Consider Approval of Revisions to Park Rules & Regulations 
            Steve Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director explained 

       Motion made by Council Member Seiler to approve.  Second by Council Member Shepherd. 
        Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 

   27.  Consider authorization of a Contract for Lakewood Park Construction Design Services 
           Steve Bosak, Parks & Recreation Director explained 
 

        Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette to approve.  Second by Council Member Shepherd. 
        Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
 
 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 

 



 
 
 
28.  Consider an Ordinance Establishing a Train Horn Quiet Zone for the Railroad Crossing at Hero Way  
       Adjacent to U.S. Hwy 183 
       Wayne Watts, City Engineer explained 
 
       Motion made by Council Member Shepherd to approve.  Second by Council Member Seiler. 
       Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
29.  Consider casting ballot for Williamson Central Appraisal District Board of Directors 
        Robert Powers, Finance Director explained 
 
        Motion made by Council Member Shepherd to give 14 votes per candidate. Second by Mayor Pro 
        Tem Navarrette.  Motion passes, all voting “aye” 
 
30.  Consider Adoption of Official City Map 
 
      Motion made by Mayor Fielder to approve.  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Navarrette. 
      Motion passes, all voting “aye”  
 
       Mayor Fielder moved back to item # 20 at this time 
 
31.  Council Members Closing Statements 

            Council Members gave their closing statements 
 
     32.  Adjournment 
            With there being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 9:10 pm                                                        
 
 
 
 
     Attest: 
 
 
           ____________________________________                    ________________________________ 
           Christopher Fielder, Mayor                Debbie Haile, TRMC, City Secretary 
 

 



AGENDA ITEM # 6 

 

 

 

 

 

Executive Summary 

November 19, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  An ordinance granting Austin Wood Recycling certain 
powers, licenses, privileges and franchise to operate a business to collect and haul brush, 
trees, and mulch within the city and designated area of the city’s ETJ for the purpose of 
recycling such materials; to use the streets, avenues, easements, rights-of-way, alleys, 
highways, sidewalks, and bridges in said city for a period of five (5) years; prescribing 
certain rights, duties, terms and conditions; providing for the payment to the City of a 
percentage of gross receipts of grantee from its operations; providing for acceptance; and 
providing for certain related matters. 
 
Background: On October 15, 2015, City Council was presented with a request from 
Austin Wood Recycling for a franchise to provide brush and mulch recycling services 
within the city limits and portions of the ETJ where applicable.  On November 5th, a 
public hearing was held and no comments were received.  The first of two required 
readings of the ordinance granting the franchise was approved.   
 
Origination: Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 
Financial Consideration: The franchise fee would be equal to 10% of gross receipts 
from the company’s charges applied to its brush and mulch recycling services. 
 
Recommendation: Approval of Second Reading 
 
Attachments: Ordinance 
 
Prepared by: Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 



ORDINANCE NO. ______________        
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, GRANTING 

AUSTIN WOOD RECYCLING CERTAIN POWERS, LICENSES, 
PRIVILEGES AND FRANCHISE TO OPERATE A BUSINESS TO 
COLLECT AND HAUL BRUSH, TREES, AND MULCH WITHIN THE 
CITY AND DESIGNATED AREA OF THE CITY’S ETJ FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF RECYCLING SUCH MATERIALS; TO USE THE 
STREETS, AVENUES, EASEMENTS, RIGHTS-OF-WAY, ALLEYS, 
HIGHWAYS, SIDEWALKS, AND BRIDGES IN SAID CITY FOR A 
PERIOD OF FIVE (5) YEARS; PRESCRIBING CERTAIN RIGHTS, 
DUTIES, TERMS AND CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT 
TO THE CITY OF A PERCENTAGE OF GROSS RECEIPTS OF 
GRANTEE FROM ITS OPERATIONS; PROVIDING FOR ACCEPTANCE; 
AND PROVIDING FOR CERTAIN RELATED MATTERS. 

 
 WHEREAS, S & M Businesses, Inc. d/b/a Austin Wood Recycling (the "Company") 
collects and hauls brush, trees, and mulch within the City of Leander (the "City") and its 
extraterritorial jurisdiction (the “ETJ”) for the purpose of recycling said materials; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council believes it is in the best interest of the City to offer the 
Company a franchise on the terms and conditions set forth in this ordinance;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Definitions. 
 
 1.0  For the purposes of this ordinance, when not inconsistent with the context, words, used 
in the present tense include the future tense, words in the plural include the singular, and words in 
the singular include the plural, and the use of any gender shall be applicable to all genders whenever 
the sense requires.  The words "shall" and "will" are mandatory and the word "may" is permissive.  
Words not defined in this Section 1 shall be given their common and ordinary meaning. 
 
 1.1  For the purposes of this ordinance, the following words, terms, phrases and their 
derivations shall have the meaning given in this Section 1.1, whether such terms appear in 
capitalized or lowercase text in this Franchise. 
 
 1.1.2  "City" shall mean the City of Leander Texas, a home rule municipal corporation in 

the State of Texas. 
 
 1.1.3  "Company" shall mean S & M Businesses, Inc. d/b/a Austin Wood Recycling its legal 

representatives, successors, lessees and assigns. 

 

 
 
 1 



 
 1.1.4  "City Secretary" shall mean the City Secretary/City Clerk of the City. 
 
 1.1.5  "Consumer" or "Customer" shall mean any person or organization within the City 

limits of the City or within the Designated Areas of the ETJ that contracts with the 
Company for recycling collection and disposal services. 

 
 1.1.6  "Council" shall mean the governing body of the City. 
 
 1.1.7  “Designated Areas of the ETJ” shall mean those subdivisions within which the City 

holds an easement over the streets and/or contracts with a municipal utility district to 
regulate and enter franchise agreements with service providers such as the Company. The 
City will maintain with the Company a list of said subdivisions. 

 
 1.1.8 “ETJ” shall mean the extraterritorial jurisdiction of the City. 
 
 1.1.9 "Franchise" shall mean this Ordinance, and all rights and obligations established 

herein to provide Recycling Services or as it may be amended. 
 
 1.1.10  "Gross receipts" shall mean the total amount collected by Company from any and all 

customers for recycling collection and services within the boundaries of the City. 
 
 1.1.11 “Recyclable Material” shall mean brush, trees, and mulch. 
 
 1.1.12 “Recycle” or “Recycling” means any process or portion thereof by which the 

Recyclable Materials which would otherwise become solid waste are separated, collected 
and processed for reuse or returned to use or to market in the form of raw materials or 
products. 

 
 1.1.13  “Recycling Facilities” shall mean the facilities owned by Company, at which 

Company will recycle the Recyclable Material, located at:  3875 E. Whitestone Boulevard, 
Cedar Park, Texas, and 9201 FM 812, Austin, Texas. 

 
 1.1.14  “AWR Construction Projects” shall mean on-site construction projects performed by 

the Company that includes the clearing, grinding, and hauling of trees and brush that may 
result in the production of Recyclable Material.  The City agrees and acknowledges that the 
Company does not charge or collect from customers a fee for the hauling of Recyclable 
Materials from AWR Construction Projects. 

 
 1.1.15  “Recycling Services” shall mean the collection and hauling of the Recyclable 

Material for recycling at one of the Company’s Recycling Facilities, and the actions and 
services directly related thereto or necessary for the provision of such services to the 
Customers in the City and the Designated Areas of the City’s ETJ as applicable.  “Recycling 

 

 
 
 2 



Services” shall include the hauling of Recyclable Materials from AWR Construction 
Projects but shall not include other aspects of the AWR Construction Projects, such as the 
clearing and grinding of trees and brush that may result in the production of Recyclable 
Material.   

 
 1.1.16  "Street" or "alley" shall mean a publicly dedicated or maintained right-of-way, a 

portion of which is open to use by the public or vehicular travel, or those private streets over 
which the City holds an easement authorizing access by service providers such as the 
Company and collection of franchise fees. 

 
 1.1.17  “TCEQ” shall mean the Texas Commission on Environmental Quality or successor 

agency. 
 
Section 2.  Grant of Franchise. 
 
 2.1  There is hereby granted to Company a non-exclusive franchise to maintain, establish 
and operate in the City, as constituted as of the effective date of this ordinance, or as may hereafter 
be constituted, Recycling Services as appropriate to sell, serve, supply and furnish the customers, 
and to the City, whenever the City may desire to contract therefor, Recycling Services and said 
Company is hereby granted passage and right-of-way in, along, over and across the streets, avenues, 
easements, right-of-way, alleys, highways, sidewalks, bridges and other transportation structures of 
the City, and the right to use in any lawful way during the term of this Franchise said streets, 
avenues, easements, right-of-way, alleys, highways, sidewalks, bridges and other transportation 
structures of the City, as they now or hereafter may exist, for the purpose of operating vehicles for 
the purpose of providing the Recycling Services as herein mentioned; provided that all such work, 
activity and undertakings by the Company shall be subject to the terms and provisions of this 
Franchise and the continuing exercise by the City of its governmental and police powers; and 
provided further that nothing herein shall be construed to require or authorize Company to exceed 
any rights granted herein or by state or federal law. 
 
 2.2  Company acknowledges and understands that the City contracts exclusively with 
another company to collect and dispose of solid waste.  Company agrees and warrants that 
Company will collect and haul Recyclable Materials only and will recycle 100% of Recyclable 
Materials that Company collects and hauls.   All Recyclable Material will be hauled to a Recycling 
Facility. 
 
 2.3  The maintenance, and operation of the Recycling Services and property of Company 
within the City shall be subject to this Franchise and the ordinances and regulations adopted by the 
Council in the exercise of the City's police and regulatory powers. 
 
 2.4  The term of this Franchise shall be for a period of five (5) years from the date this 
Ordinance is finally adopted by the Council upon acceptance by Company as herein provided. 
 

 

 
 
 3 



 2.5  The Company shall not transfer this Franchise nor any rights and privileges granted 
herein without the written approval of the Council expressed by Ordinance.  Such approval shall 
not be unreasonably withheld. 
 
 2.5  Nothing contained in this Franchise shall be construed as granting any exclusive 
franchise or right. 
 
Section 3.  Use of Streets and Easements.  The Company is hereby authorized, licensed and 
empowered to do any and all things necessary and proper to be done and performed in executing 
the powers and utilizing the privileges herein mentioned and granted by this Franchise, provided the 
same do not conflict with traffic codes and ordinances, with existing sewers, electric power lines, 
telephone lines, cable television lines and other authorized installations, and provided that all work 
done in said streets, avenues, easements, rights-of-way, alleys, highways, sidewalks, bridges and 
other structures and places and public grounds by the Company shall be limited to the collection, 
hauling, and recycling of the Recyclable Material with reasonable diligence and without 
unnecessary inconvenience to the public or individuals.  
 
Section 4.  Service to be Provided by Company. 
 
 4.1  Service may be provided by means of hauling, collection and travel in the streets, 
alleys, easements, and other public rights-of-way.  The Company shall not place its equipment and 
appurtenances where the same will obstruct or interfere with motor vehicle traffic, or any existing 
television cable, electric, drainage, sewer or telephone facilities, traffic control signalization, street 
lights, fire lines or communications lines, be unsightly, or constitute a nuisance.  The Council may 
require the relocation or screening of any containers or bins.   
 
 4.2  Containers shall not be located in or on any public or City property, easements, or 
rights-of-way; provided that Company may request a waiver of this Section 4.2 on a case-by-case 
basis by submitting a waiver request to the City Secretary. 
 
 4.3  The Company shall furnish service consistent with the requirements and intent of this 
Franchise and its "service regulations" as now or hereafter adopted by the Company; provided the 
Company shall be subject to the police powers and regulations of the City. 
 
 4.4  The Company's trucks, equipment and appurtenances shall be used and operated so that 
none of such shall unreasonably endanger the lives of persons, unreasonably interfere with any 
public improvements the City may deem proper to make, be unsightly or constitute a nuisance, or 
obstruct the free use of the streets, alleys, bridges, easements or public property. 
 
 4.5  The Company shall inspect each container and remove any material other than 
Recyclable Material prior to hauling the container from a site.  Any material removed from a 
container shall be placed in an appropriate trash receptacle, or left on site.  In the event the 
Company fails to comply with this Section, the Company shall pay a fee of $200.00 for each 

 

 
 
 4 



occurrence and shall include this fee in the first quarterly franchise fee payment following the date 
of the occurrence. 
 
 4.6  All Recyclable Material hauled by the Company shall be so contained, tied or 
enclosed that spilling or blowing are minimized. 
 
 4.7  The Company shall maintain an office or such other facilities through which it can be 
contacted and shall maintain a current contact with the City.   
 
 4.8  All complaints shall be made directly to the Company and shall be given prompt and 
courteous attention.  In the case of alleged collection and/or hauling of materials other than 
Recyclable Materials, the Company shall investigate and, if such allegations are verified, shall 
pay the $200 fee per occurrence required by this Ordinance. The Company shall keep and 
maintain a record of all complaints received during the Term and any extended Term of this 
Contract. 
 
 4.9  The Company shall conduct operations under this contract in compliance with all  
applicable local, state and federal laws, rule, regulations and ordinances, including specifically, 
but not limited to the City’s tree protection and removal regulations.  The Company shall 
perform all services under this Franchise with qualified personnel.   
 
 4.10  The Company shall promptly repair any damage to City or public property caused 
by Company’s activities under this Franchise at Company’s expense. 
 
Section 5.  Company Rules and Regulations. 
 
 5.1  The Company's rates, rules and regulations shall be and remain in effect as adopted and 
amended from time to time; provided that should such conflict with an ordinance of the City, the 
requirements of the ordinance shall govern.  Nothing in this Agreement shall impair the Company’s 
right or ability to increase or decrease the rates charged to customers for Recycling Services, which 
will be made at its sole discretion.  
 
 5.2  Company shall be entitled to require from each and every customer to make such 
deposits and payments as required by the Company, and to comply with the rules and regulations 
adopted by the Company. 
 
Section 6.  Franchise Fees; Reports. 
 
 6.1  The streets, rights-of-way, and public easements to be used by the Company in the 
operation of its system within the boundaries of the City as such boundaries exist as of the effective 
date of this ordinance, are valuable public properties acquired and maintained by the City at great 
expense to its taxpayers, without which the Company would be required to invest in right-of-way 
costs and acquisitions, and the City will incur costs in regulating and administering this Franchise in 

 

 
 
 5 



such public ways and in the Designated Areas of the ETJ; therefore, the Company shall through the 
term of this Franchise pay to the City ten percent (10%) of the Company's total gross receipts 
arising from Recycling Services (exclusive of Texas Limited Sales Tax) each calendar quarter 
collected from customers and consumers within the corporate limits of the City and within the 
Designated Areas of the ETJ under the Company's rates effective from time to time.  Franchise fees 
shall be due on May 15, August 15, November 15, and February 15 for the preceding calendar 
quarters of March 31, June 30, September 30, and December 31, respectively.   
 
 6.2  Each franchise fee payment shall be accompanied by a report of all accounts served 
during the quarter for which the franchise fee is paid.  The report shall include: (a) the account 
information for each customer (including customer name and location of service provided); (b) 
records of the disposal of each container at a Recycling Facility; and (c) any reports filed with 
TCEQ in the prior quarter in relation to recycling the Recyclable Materials.  The Company shall 
maintain records regarding the gross revenues collected under this Franchise and disposal of the 
Recyclable Material for period of at least twenty-four (24) months and shall make such records 
available to the City for copying and inspection during normal business hours upon request by the 
City. 
 
 6.3  The franchise fee shall be in lieu of any and all other city imposed rentals or 
compensation or franchise, license, privilege, instrument, occupation, excise or revenue taxes or 
fees and all other exactions or charges (except as and when applicable ad valorem property taxes, 
special assessments for local improvements, city sales tax, and such other charges imposed 
uniformly upon persons, firms or corporations then engaged in business within the City) or permits 
upon or relating to the business, revenue, equipment and all other property of the Company and its 
activities, or any part thereof, in the City which relate to the operations of the Company's Recycling 
Services. 
 
 6.4  Should the City not have the legal power to agree that the payment of the foregoing 
sums of money shall be in lieu of licenses, fees, street or alley rentals or charges, easement or 
franchise taxes or charges aforesaid, then City agrees that it will apply so much of said sums of 
money paid as may be necessary to satisfy Company's obligations, if any, to pay any such licenses, 
charges, fees, rentals, easement or franchise taxes or charges. 
 
Section 7.  Insurance Provided by Company.  The Company shall maintain throughout the term 
of the Franchise property damage coverage, general liability insurance, automobile liability 
insurance, and worker compensation insurance, with an insurance company, or companies, licensed 
to do business in the State of Texas insuring against claims for liability and damages.   
 
Section 8.  Indemnification and Hold Harmless.  The Company agrees to indemnify, defend, and 
save harmless the city, its agents officers and employees, against and from any and all claims by or 
on behalf of any person, firm, corporation or other entity, arising from the Company's operations 
and business, or arising from any act of negligence of the Company, or any of its agents, 
contractors, servants, employees or licensees, and from and against all costs, counsel fees, expenses 

 

 
 
 6 



and liabilities incurred in or about any such claim or proceeding brought thereon, and from any and 
all claims arising from any breach or default on the part of the Company in the performance of any 
covenant or agreement on the part of the Company to be performed pursuant to the terms of this 
Franchise.  The City shall promptly notify the Company of any claim or cause of action which may 
be asserted against the City relating to or covering any matter against which the Company has 
agreed, as set forth above, to indemnify, defend and save harmless the City.  The Company reserves 
the right, but not the obligation, to employ such attorneys, expert witnesses and consultants as it 
deems necessary to defend against the claim or cause of action.  The Company may be granted the 
right to take, in the event the Company and the City are Co-Defendants in a suit, total or partial lead 
responsibility for the defense of any claim or cause of action.  It is understood that it is not the 
intention of either the City or the Company to create any liability, right, or claim for the benefit of 
third parties and this Franchise is intended and shall be construed for the sole benefit of the City and 
the Company. 
 
Section 9.  Suspension of Franchise.  After notice to the Company and a hearing, the City 
Manager shall have the right to suspend this Franchise in the event that the Company violates 
Section 2.2 three times.  Reinstatement of the Franchise shall require City Council approval.  
 
Section 10.  Term of Franchise.  Subject to any early termination in accordance with the 
provisions hereof, the original term of this Franchise will extend for five (5) years from the 
effective date (the “Original Term”) and will automatically renew for a second five (5) year term 
unless either party gives written notice to the other party at least sixty (60) days prior to the 
expiration of the Original Term that this Franchise will expire and terminate at the end of the 
Original Term. 
 
Section 11.  Termination.  The City shall have the right and option to terminate this Franchise, 
after notice to Company and hearing, for breach of this Franchise or for failure to comply with 
this Franchise; provided that Company shall be given a thirty (30) day period after the hearing in 
which to cure such breach.  In the event a period for curing such breach is provided, a second 
hearing shall be held at the expiration of the cure period and this Franchise shall not be 
terminated if it is found that the breach has been cured and resolved during such cure period.  In 
the event the City Council finds, after notice and hearing held at anytime after any previous 
opportunity to cure, that Company has breached this Franchise, the City Council may terminate 
this Contract.  The Company shall have the right to terminate this Franchise upon sixty (60) 
days’ written notice to the City and after termination of the Franchise shall refrain from providing 
the Recycling Services within the city unless granted a franchise or permit from the City in 
accordance with the City Charter and other applicable procedures in effect at the time. 
 
Section 12.  Acceptance of Franchise by Company. This Franchise shall not become effective 
until accepted by the Company executing the written acceptance provided at the end of this 
franchise ordinance, prior to or within thirty (30) days from the final adoption of this ordinance, and 
filing such properly executed acceptance with the City Secretary.  When adopted by the City and 

 

 
 
 7 



accepted by the Company in conformance with this section, this Franchise shall be a duly executed 
contract by and between the City and the Company. 
 
Section 13.  Notice.  Any notice or other communication given under this Franchise must be in 
writing and may be given: (i) by depositing it in the United States mail, certified, with return receipt 
requested, addressed to the Party to be notified and with all charges prepaid; or (ii) by depositing it 
with Federal Express or another service guaranteeing “next day delivery”, addressed to the party to 
be notified and with all charges prepaid; (iii) by personally delivering it to the Party, or any agent of 
the Party listed in this Agreement; or (iv) by electronic mail or facsimile with confirming copy sent 
by one of the other described methods of notice set forth above.  Notice by United States mail will 
be effective on the earlier of the date of receipt or three days after the date of mailing.  Notice given 
in any other manner will be effective only when received.  For purposes of notice, the addresses of 
the Parties will, until changed as provided below, be as follows: 
 

City:   City of Leander 
Attn: City Manager 
 

By personal delivery: 200 West Willis Street  
Leander, TX 78641 
 

By mail:   P.O. Box 319 
Leander, TX 78641 

 
With a copy to: Paige Saenz 

City Attorney  
Executive Office Terrace 
223 West Anderson Lane, Suite A-105 
Austin, Texas 78752 

 
Company:   

 
With a copy to:  
 

The Parties may change their respective addresses to any other address within the United States of 
America by giving at least five (5) days’ written notice to the other Parties.  The Company may, by 
giving at least five (5) days’ written notice to Leander, designate additional parties to receive copies 
of notices under this Agreement.  
 
Section 14.  Transfer, Sale or Conveyance by Company.  The Company shall not transfer, sale 
or convey this Franchise without the prior written approval of the Council for the transfer of this 
Franchise, expressed by ordinance. 
 

 

 
 
 8 



Section 15.  Severability.  If any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, part or provision hereof 
shall be adjudged invalid or unconstitutional the same shall not affect the validity hereof as a whole 
or any part or provision other than the part or parts held invalid or unconstitutional.  
 
Section 16.  Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance was passed was open to the public, and public notice of the time, place and 
purpose of said meeting was given, as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Texas 
Government Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on first reading this the 5th day of November, 2015. 
 PASSED AND FINALLY APPROVED on second reading this the 19th day of November, 
2015. 
 
       CITY OF LEANDER 
Attest: 
       ___________________________________ 
____________________________   Christopher Fielder, Mayor 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 
 ACCEPTED AND AGREED TO effective as of the date passed and approved by the City 
Council of the City of Leander. 
 
      S & M Businesses, Inc. a Texas corporation d/b/a  
      Austin Wood Recycling, a Texas corpotion 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      Name:__________________________ 
      Title:_________________________  

15005361v.2 

 

 
 
 9 



AGENDA ITEM # 7 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
November 19, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 15-TOD-Z-022: Consider action on the rezoning of 

one tract of land, for 19 acres more or less, generally located 2,100 
feet to the west of the intersection of US 183 and San Gabriel 
Pkwy on the north side of San Gabriel Pkwy, WCAD Parcel 
R522995. Currently, the property is zoned PUD/TOD (Planned 
Unit Development/Transit Oriented Development) and the 
applicant is proposing to amend the PUD to designate the base 
zoning district as SFR-3-A (Single-Family Rural) as permitted by 
the SmartCode, Leander, Williamson County, Texas. 

 
Background: This request is the final step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Hill Country Bible Church. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis. The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval of the request with staff’s 
recommendation at the October 22, 2015 meeting.  The City 
Council unanimously approved the Planning & Zoning 
Commission recommendation at the November 5, 2015 meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3. Proposed Zoning Map 
 4.   Aerial Map 
 5. Notification Map 
 6. Conceptual Site Layout & Land Use Plan 
 7.  Letter of Intent 
 8. Ordinance  
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 11/12/2015 



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 15-TOD-Z-022 

HILL COUNTRY BIBLE CHURCH PUD 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Hill Country Bible Church 
 
Current Zoning: PUD/TOD (Planned Unit Development/Transit Oriented Development) 
    
Proposed Zoning: PUD/TOD (Planned Unit Development/Transit Oriented Development) 
  
Size and Location: The property is generally located 2,100 feet to the west of the intersection 

of US 183 and San Gabriel Pkwy on the north side of San Gabriel Pkwy. 
 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner      
   
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH HC-4-C Undeveloped Property 

EAST PUD/TOD Proposed Maya Vista Subdivision 

SOUTH PUD/TOD Proposed Oak Creek Subdivision 

WEST LC-2-B Undeveloped Property zoned for local commercial and the 
Savanna Ranch Section 4 detention pond. 

        

  

1 
 



Attachment # 1                 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE & SMARTCODE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 

PUD/TOD – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT/TRANSIT ORIENTED 
DEVELOPMENT: 

The purpose and intent of the Planned Unit Development (PUD) district is to design unified 
standards for development in order to facilitate flexible, customized zoning and subdivision 
standards which encourage imaginative and innovative designs for the development of 
property within the City.  The intent of this zoning request is to provide for the design of a 
development which permits a mixed-residential community.  The intent of this zoning district 
is to cohesively regulate the development to assure compatibility with adjacent single-family 
residences, neighborhoods, and commercial properties within the region. 

 
CONVENTIONAL ZONE: 

The Conventional Development Sector allows conventional single-use and mixed-use 
development with some basic design standards to provide a transition to adjacent 
neighborhoods and pedestrian-oriented communities, and for the possibility of future retrofit 
of the area to a more pedestrian-oriented pattern. 
 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Establish high standards for development. 

 
 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting an amendment to the TOD/PUD (Transit Oriented 
Development/Planned Unit Development) district in to order to develop a church campus.  The 
property to the east is part of the proposed Maya Vista Subdivision and to the south is Oak Creek 
Subdivision that is currently under construction.  The property to the north is undeveloped 
property zoned for heavy commercial uses and the property to west is undeveloped property 
zoned for local commercial uses.    
 
The proposed base zoning for this PUD is SFR-3-A (Single-Family Rural).  This zoning district 
permits large lot residential developments as well as places of worship.  The Type 3 site 
component will allow for the proposed church campus and not limit the size of the building.  The 
Type 2 site component limits and individual users to 40,000 gross square feet of floor area in a 
single building.  In addition, the Type A Architectural Component requires that all structures are 
eighty-five (85%) percent masonry. 
 
The Conventional Development (CD) Sector Standards will apply to this project including: 
 All buildings shall meet the Type A Architectural Component of the Composite Zoning 

Ordinance. 

2 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 Surface parking consisting of no more than one drive aisle with head-in parking spaces 
on each side of the drive aisle are permitted between the building and the right-of-way. A 
landscape screen or wall no taller than 4 feet in height shall be constructed and 
maintained to screen the view of the parking from the adjacent ROW.   

 All drive aisles shall be designed and easements conveyed to connect to existing or future 
drive aisles on adjacent properties. 

 Sidewalks and street trees in compliance with the Composite Zoning Ordinance shall be 
required between the parking lot and the right-of-way. 

 Sidewalks at least 12 feet wide shall be provided between the building facade and the 
parking lot, with trees in grates or planter boxes every 30 feet. 

 A continuous building frontage is required.  The frontage may only be broken by a street, 
pedestrian passage, courtyard or similar feature approved by the Planning Director.  For 
phased building construction within a block, a screen wall or landscape hedge shall be 
constructed at the building frontage line prior to building construction.  This provision 
shall be modified to allow for a break in the building frontage on the west and east sides 
of the building for the parking area.  This parking area may not exceed 40% of the lot 
frontage. 

 The provision of pedestrian amenities such as benches, outdoor dining areas, awnings 
over sidewalks and other similar features is encouraged.  The Planning Director may 
provide a reduction of the minimum parking or landscaping requirement of up to 15% for 
the provision of pedestrian amenities. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested TOD/PUD amendment.  The proposed land use is 
compatible with the neighboring properties.  This request meets the intent statements of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance and complies with the Conventional Development (CD) Standards. 
 

3 
 



! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

BENBROOK
RANCH
PARK

BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 1

PLAIN
ES

4C

5D

4C

4C

4C

US 183

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

HERITAGE GROVE RD

W 
BR

OA
DE

 ST
MISTFLOWER SPRINGS DR

OA
K 

GR
OV

E 
RD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-TOD-Z-022  Attachment #2 Current Zoning Map - Hill Country Bible

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

SAVANNA RANCH,SEC 1

BENBROOK
RANCH
PARK

BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 1

PLAIN
ES

EONCR,SEC 2

4C

5D

4C

4C

4C

US 183

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

HERITAGE GROVE RD

W 
BR

OA
DE

 ST
MISTFLOWER SPRINGS DR

OA
K 

GR
OV

E 
RD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-TOD-Z-022  Attachment #3 Proposed Zoning Map - Hill Country Bible

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

HERITAGE GROVE RD

MISTFLOWER SPRINGS DR

OA
K G

RO
VE

 R
D

W 
BR

OA
DE

 ST

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200

Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 15-TOD-Z-022 Attachment #4
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Hill Country Bible Church

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



R321825

R031694

R529005

R031728

R522995

R462849

R529012

R395787

R031640

R0
31

64
5

R529009

R0
31

72
2

R508012

R031721

R395875

R476719

R349069

R4
62

85
0

R462848

R031637

R529006

R048976

R031720

R476718
R0

99
99

1

R5
28

99
9

R5
29

00
0

R525192

R528759

R031642

R528758

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

HERITAGE GROVE RD

MISTFLOWER SPRINGS DR

OA
K 

GR
OV

E 
RD

W 
BR

OA
DE

 ST

MUST
ANG BROOK LN

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-TOD-Z-022  

Attachment #5
Notification Map
Hill Country Bible Church

CITY MAPË

Public Notice Boundary
Subject Property
WCAD Parcels

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



EXHIBIT A 
 

Hill Country Bible Planned Unit Development 
 
 

A. Purpose and Intent 
 
The Hill Country Bible Church PUD is composed of approximately 19 acres, as 
described in Exhibit A (Field Notes). The development of this property is planned as a 
church campus. 
 
 
B. Applicability and Base Zoning 
 

1. All aspects regarding the development of this PUD shall comply the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance and the Conventional Development (CD) 
Sector Standards, except as established in this exhibit, titled Exhibit A. 
 

2. The Conventional Development (CD) Sector Standard regarding the continuous  
building frontage shall be modified as follows: 

 
A continuous building frontage is required.  The frontage may only be 
broken by a street, pedestrian passage, courtyard, parking area, or similar 
feature approved by the Planning Director.  The parking area may break 
the building frontage on the west and east sides of the building and shall 
not exceed 40% of the lot frontage.  For phased building construction 
within a block, a screen wall or landscape hedge shall be constructed at the 
building frontage line prior to building construction.   

 
3. For the purpose of establishing development standards for the PUD, the SFR-3-

A (Single-Family Rural) base zoning district has been selected from the Leander 
Composite Zoning Ordinance for the proposed church campus. 

 
 
C. Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 
 
Exhibit B (attached) is a conceptual site layout and land use plan intended to visually 
convey the proposed location of the church campus.  This plan does not constitute plat or 
site plan approval. 
 



rstover
Text Box
EXHIBIT B:Conceptual Site Layout & Land Use PlanBase Zoning District:  SFR-3-A 

rstover
Line

rstover
Line



rstover
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 7



Amending Ordinance 14-042-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT KNOWN AS THE TRANSIT 
ORIENTED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT FOR A PARCEL OF LAND BY 
CREATING THE HILL COUNTRY BIBLE CHURCH PLANNED UNIT 
DEVELOPMENT; MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING 
FOR RELATED MATTERS. 
 

 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property"), which is located 
within the planned unit development known as the Transit Oriented Development District (the 
“TODD”), has requested that the Property be rezoned and a planned unit development plan (the 
“PUD plan”) for the Hill Country Bible Church Planned Unit Development (“PUD”) be adopted; 
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
 
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2. Amendment of TODD Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 14-042-00, as amended, the City of 
Leander TODD Ordinance, is hereby modified and amended for these Properties as set forth in 
Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability.  The TODD Ordinance is hereby amended by creation of the Hill Country 
Bible PUD, which are herein referred to as the “Property,” generally located 2,100 feet to the west 
of the intersection of US 183 and San Gabriel Pkwy on the north side of San Gabriel Pkwy, and 
more particularly described as follows:  19.0 acres out of the Charles Cochran Survey, Abstract 
Number 134, located in Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly shown and 
described in Exhibits “C” and “D”; and identified by tax identification number R522995; more 
particularly described in document number 2013018966 recorded in the Williamson County 
Official Public Records.   
 
Section 4. Property Rezoned. The Property is zoned to the planned unit development district 
known as the Hill Country Bible PUD within the TODD.  The Property shall be developed and 
occupied in compliance with the PUD plan attached hereto as Exhibits “A” and “B”, the 
Conventional Development Sector Standards of the Smart Code (defined in the TODD 
Ordinance), the Composite Zoning Ordinance, and other applicable regulations of the City.   



Amending Ordinance 14-042-00 

Section 4. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 
Section 5.Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 6.Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 5th day of November, 2015. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 19th day of November, 2015. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 

Hill Country Bible Planned Unit Development 
 
 

A. Purpose and Intent 
 
The Hill Country Bible Church PUD is composed of approximately 19 acres, as 
described in Exhibit C (Field Notes). The development of this property is planned as a 
church campus. 
 
 
B. Applicability and Base Zoning 
 

1. All aspects regarding the development of this PUD shall comply the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance and the Conventional Development (CD) 
Sector Standards, except as established in this exhibit, titled Exhibit A. 
 

2. The Conventional Development (CD) Sector Standard regarding the continuous  
building frontage shall be modified as follows: 

 
A continuous building frontage is required.  The frontage may only be 
broken by a street, pedestrian passage, courtyard, parking area, or similar 
feature approved by the Planning Director.  The parking area may break 
the building frontage on the west and east sides of the building and shall 
not exceed 40% of the lot frontage.  For phased building construction 
within a block, a screen wall or landscape hedge shall be constructed at the 
building frontage line prior to building construction.   

 
3. For the purpose of establishing development standards for the PUD, the SFR-3-

A (Single-Family Rural) base zoning district has been selected from the Leander 
Composite Zoning Ordinance for the proposed church campus. 

 
 
C. Conceptual Site Layout and Land Use Plan 
 
Exhibit B (attached) is a conceptual site layout and land use plan intended to visually 
convey the proposed location of the church campus.  This plan does not constitute plat or 
site plan approval. 
 



rstover
Text Box
EXHIBIT B:Conceptual Site Layout & Land Use PlanBase Zoning District:  SFR-3-A 

rstover
Line

rstover
Line



rstover
Text Box
EXHIBIT C





! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

SAVANNA RANCH,SEC 1

BENBROOK
RANCH
PARK

BENBROOK RANCH,
SEC 1

PLAIN
ES

EONCR,SEC 2

4C

5D

4C

4C

4C

US 183

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

HERITAGE GROVE RD

W 
BR

OA
DE

 ST
MISTFLOWER SPRINGS DR

PALMILLA ST

OA
K 

GR
OV

E 
RD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-TOD-Z-022  Exhibit D Zoning Map - Hill Country Bible

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



AGENDA ITEM # 8 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
November 19, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 14-Z-029: Consider action on the rezoning of two 

tracts of land, for 53.985 acres more or less, located at 10744 E. 
Crystal Falls Parkway, WCAD Parcels R031201 & R080605. 
Currently, the property is zoned Interim SFR-1-B Single Family 
Rural) and the applicant is proposing to zone the property GC-2-A 
(General Commercial), Leander, Williamson County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the final step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Bowman Consulting (W.L. Gabler) on behalf of Premas 

Global Leander, LLC 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis. The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval of the staff recommendation 
of GC-2-A, LC-2-A, LO-2-A, and SFT-2-A as shown in 
Attachment 6  at the October 22, 2015 meeting.  The City Council 
approved the Planning & Zoning Commission recommendation 
with a 6 to 1 vote at the November 5, 2015. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3. Proposed Zoning Map 
 4.   Aerial Map 
 5. Location Map 
 6. Staff Proposed Zoning Map 
 7. Notification Map  
 8. Letter of Intent  
 9. Ordinance  
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 11/12/2015 



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 14-Z-029 

GLOBAL VILLAGE REZONING 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Premas Global Leander, LLC 
 
Current Zoning: Interim SFR-1-B (Single Family Rural) 
 
Proposed Zoning: GC-2-A (General Commercial) 
  
Size and Location: The property is located at 10744 E. Crystal Falls Parkway and includes 

approximately 53.985 acres. 
 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner      
   
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH GC-2-A Undeveloped Land Zoned for Commercial Use 

EAST 
GC-2-A 
LC-1-B 

Interim SFR-1-B 

Undeveloped Land Zoned for Commercial, Local Commercial 
and Interim Single Family Uses 

SOUTH OCL Undeveloped Land located outside of the City Limits & ETJ 

WEST 

GC-3-A 
LC-3-A 
LO-2-A 
SFU-2-B 

Undeveloped Land Zoned for Commercial, Local Commercial 
and Local Office Uses 
 
Established Single-Family Subdivision (Ridgewood South) 

        

  

1 
 



Attachment # 1                 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 
SFT – SINGLE FAMILY TOWNHOUSE:   

Features:  2,000 sq. ft. lot min; 900 sq. ft. living area min. 
Intent:  development of single-family attached dwellings on very small sized lots and for other uses 

that are compatible and complimentary to attached residential development. This component is 
generally intended as follows: 

(1) To provide an orderly transition and serve as a buffer between larger lot neighborhoods and more 
intensive uses such as multi-family or commercial uses or arterial roadways. 

(2) To create more variety in housing opportunities and in the fabric of the neighborhoods. 
(3) To include or be located within six hundred feet of parkland or other recreational open space. 
(4) To be located in planned communities of greater than 100 acres and comprising less than ten 

percent (10%) of the lots, or to provide infill opportunities in appropriate areas of the City such as 
in areas under transition. 

Frontage for such lots shall be provided by a street with a ROW of fifty-six (56) feet or greater 
and a pavement width of thirty-six (36) feet or greater unless access to garages on such lots is 
from an alley. 

 
LO – LOCAL OFFICE:   

Features:  Office, assisted living, day care.  Hours of operation: 7:00 a.m. to 10:00 Sun.-Thurs., 
7:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. Fri. and Sat. 

Intent:  Development of small scale, limited impact office uses or similar uses which may be 
located adjacent to residential neighborhoods.  Access should be provided by a collector or 
higher classification street.  This component is intended to help provide for land use transitions 
from local or general commercial or from arterial streets to residential development. 

 
LC – LOCAL COMMERCIAL:   

Features: Any use in LO plus retail sales and services, restaurants, banks, nursery or greenhouse, 
grocery sales, pharmacies, fitness centers, dance and music academies, artist studio, colleges 
and universities, bed and breakfast.  Hours of operation: 5:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m. Sun.-Thurs., 
5:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. Fri. and Sat. 

Intent:  Development of small scale, limited impact commercial, retail, personal services and 
office uses located in close proximity to their primary customers, which cater to the everyday 
needs of the nearby residents, and which may be located near residential neighborhoods.  
Access should be provided by a collector or higher classification street. 

 
GC – GENERAL COMMERCIAL:   

Features:  Any use in LC plus bar, nightclub, entertainment venues, hospital, hotel, liquor store, 
office/warehouse, vehicle and equipment sales, leasing and repair, furniture sales, pet shop, 
wholesale activities less than 3,500 sq. ft. 

Intent:  Development of small to large scale commercial, retail, and commercial service uses 
located in high traffic areas.  Access to this component should be provided by an arterial street.  
The heaviest concentration of this component should be located at intersections of arterial 
streets. 

 
  

2 
 



Attachment # 1                 

TYPE 2:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 

dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with LI and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

 
TYPE A:   

Features:  85% masonry; 5 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type A architectural component is intended to be utilized for high quality developments or to 

provide variety as an additional option for portions of a residential development and may be 
utilized in or adjacent to single-family uses.   

(2) This component is intended to be utilized for single-family development that backs up to, or sides 
to, a major thoroughfare. 

(3) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 
for harmonious land use transitions by applying this component to a less restrictive use or site 
component adjacent to a more restrictive use or site component.  This standard may be utilized to 
help ensure compatibility for non-residential uses, multi-family, two-family, townhouse or small 
lot residential development with adjacent property that is more restricted.   

(4) This component is intended to be utilized for buildings requiring heights greater than those 
provided in other architectural components.   

(5) This component may be utilized for any high profile development, for any property in a prominent 
location or at an important gateway to the community. 

(6) This component is not intended to become an involuntary standard for the majority of a single-
family subdivision, especially with SFR, SFE, SFS, SFU and SFC components. 

  

3 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Plan for future development that is compatible with existing residential neighborhoods. 
 The Community Center provides the same uses and services offered by a Neighborhood 

Center including small professional offices, small-lot single-family, townhouses, 
duplexes and quadplexes, churches, gyms, child care centers, and other civic uses, etc. 
Additionally, Community Centers include uses that are demanded less frequently than 
daily, and are typically anchored by grocery stores. Community Centers should have an 
internal network of streets and promote walkability within the Center. 

 Mixed Use Corridors are areas along arterials between Centers that have available land 
and should be developed to preserve the integrity of the corridor and maintain mobility.  
These corridors include land within approximately 500 feet of the outer edge of the right-
of-way (typically one block deep). 
   

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting to rezone the property to GC-2-A (General Commercial) in order to 
allow for a commercial development at this location.  This property was involuntarily annexed in 
to the City on January 17, 2013 and the current Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) zoning 
was established.  The adjacent property to the north is associated with this project and was 
rezoned to the GC-2-A district on September 16, 2010 by the City Council.  The properties to the 
west currently include the Ridgewood South Subdivision and undeveloped commercial.  The 
property to the south is not located within the City Limits or ETJ.  The property to the east is 
zoned GC-2-A and LC-1-B and is currently undeveloped.  The Crystal Springs Subdivision is 
also proposed to the east of the subject property. 
 
The General Commercial use component permits the development of small to large scale 
commercial, retail, and commercial service uses located in high traffic areas.  The Composite 
Zoning Ordinance states that access to this component should be provided by an arterial street 
and that the heaviest concentration of this component should be located at intersections of 
arterial streets.  In this situation, the proposed zoning is located approximately 500 feet from the 
intersection of 183A Toll Road and East Crystal Falls Parkway. 
 
The Type 2 site component is intended to be used with non-residential developments that are 
adjacent to a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative 
impacts to the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development 
intensity.  This site component does allow for drive through service lanes and accessory 
buildings.  This site component does not allow outdoor storage, display, overhead service doors, 
carwashes or fueling stations.  In addition, the Type A Architectural Component requires that all 
structures are eight five (85%) percent masonry and have a minimum of five different design 
features. 

4 
 



Attachment # 1                 

This property is located within a Community Center.  The Community Center provides the same 
uses and services offered by a Neighborhood Center including small professional offices, small-
lot single-family, townhouses, duplexes and quadplexes, churches, gyms, child care centers, and 
other civic uses, etcetera. Additionally, Community Centers include uses that are demanded less 
frequently than daily, and are typically anchored by grocery stores. Community Centers should 
have an internal network of streets and promote walkability within the Center.  The target land 
use mix for a Community Center is 50% residential and 50% non-residential.  Currently, this 
Community Center is zoned 32% residential and 68% non-residential. 
 
This property is also located within a Mixed Use Corridor.  Mixed Use Corridors are areas along 
arterials between Centers that have available land and should be developed to preserve the 
integrity of the corridor and maintain mobility.  These corridors include land within 
approximately 500 feet of the outer edge of the right-of-way (typically one block deep).  This 
corridor extends along 183A Toll Road to the south along the property. 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the following districts as shown in Attachment 6: 
 
 GC-2-A (General Commercial) – 29.73 acres 
 LC-2-A (Local Commercial) – 4.92 acres 
 LO-2-A (Local Office) – 5.11 acres 
 SFT-2-A (Single-Family Townhome) – 13.3 acres  

 
The applicant’s request does not comply with the Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use 
Map.  The staff proposal modifies the request to incorporate general commercial, local 
commercial, local office, and high density single-family uses.  The GC-2-A district is located 
within and adjacent to the Community Center boundaries.  The LC-2-A, LO-2-A, and SFT-2-A 
districts are located within and adjacent to a Mixed Use Corridor.  As stated in the 
Comprehensive Plan, the LC-2-A is proposed to be located at the intersection of the proposed 
extension of Raider Way and 183A Toll Road.  The LO-2-A is located along the 183A Toll Road 
frontage not adjacent to an intersection.  This arrangement provides for a transition of land uses 
from the major intersection to the proposed single-family zoning to the east.  The staff 
recommendation complies with the Comprehensive Plan and the intent statements of the 
Composite Zoning Ordinance. 

5 
 



LEANDER CROSSING

ROUSE
HS

WYLIE
MS

CRYSTALCROSSINGPH 1

RIDGEWOODNORTH

RIDGEWOODSOUTHPH 1

OAKRIDGE,SEC4

OAKRIDGE,SEC3

PLEASANTHILLESTATES

HORIZONPARK, SEC 5

HORIZONPARK, SEC 3

PLEASANT
HILL
ES

RIDGEWOODSOUTHPH 2

COLD SPRINGS,SEC 3

COLD SPRINGS,SEC 4

CRYSTAL SPRINGS

COLD SPRINGS,SEC 5

3A

2A

3A

2A
2A 2A 3B

2A

2A

1B

3A

1C2A

1B

2A
2A

3A

3A

3A

2A

3A

3A

3A

3A

3A

2A

3A

3A

183A TOLL RD SB

183A TOLL RD NB

183A TOLL RD FR SB

183A TOLL RD FR NB

RA
ID

ER
 W

AY

PVR 921PVR 920

VINTA
GE DR

CA
LL

A 
LIL

Y B
LV

D

RUTHERFORD DR

CHARDONNAY XING

E WOODVIEW DR

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

RI
DG

EW
OO

D 
DR

DOWNRIDGE DR

YE
LL

OW
 IR

IS
 R

D

BLOCK HOUSE DR

ST HELENA DR

CALISTOGA DR

LA
MB

RU
SC

O 
LN

LILY PAD LANE

BA
RD

OL
IN

O 
LN

BORDEAUX DR

YOUNTVILLE DR

SPUMANTI LN

NAPA CV

WA
TE

R 
HY

SS
OP

 LO
OP

WA
TE

R 
HY

AC
IN

TH
 LO

OP

JO
RD

AN
 C

V

MADEIRA CV

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-029

Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map
Global Village

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction

Community
Center Node

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



LEANDER CROSSING

ROUSE
HS

WYLIE
MS

CRYSTALCROSSINGPH 1

RIDGEWOODNORTH

RIDGEWOODSOUTHPH 1

OAKRIDGE,SEC4

PLEASANTHILLESTATES

HORIZONPARK, SEC 3

RIDGEWOODSOUTHPH 2

COLD SPRINGS,SEC 2

COLD SPRINGS,SEC 3

COLD SPRINGS,SEC 4

CRYSTAL SPRINGS

COLD SPRINGS,SEC 5

3A

3A
2A

2A

2A

1B

2A3B2A

3A

1C2A

1B

2A

2A

2A

3C3A

2A

3A
3A

3C

3A

3A

2A
183A TOLL RD SB

183A TOLL RD NB

183A TOLL RD FR SB

183A TOLL RD FR NB

RA
ID

ER
 W

AY

CA
LL

A 
LIL

Y B
LV

D

PVR 921PVR 920

RUTHERFORD DR

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

E WOODVIEW DR
VINTA

GE DR

RI
DG

MA
R 

RD

CHARDONNAY XING

CA
CT

US
 M

OU
ND

 D
R

BLOCK HOUSE DR

CALISTOGA DR

LA
MB

RU
SC

O 
LN

YELLOW IRIS RD

BA
RD

OL
IN

O 
LN

LILY PAD LANE

YOUNTVILLE DR

183A TOLL RD

SPUMANTI LN

GRAND LAKE PKW
Y

WA
TE

R 
HY

SS
OP

 LO
OP

JO
RD

AN
 C

V

WOODVIEW DR

PICTON CT

183A TOLL RD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-029

Attachment #3
Proposed Zoning Map
Global Village

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction

2A

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



183A TOLL RD SB
183A TOLL RD NB

183A TOLL RD FR SB

183A TOLL RD FR NB

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

RA
ID

ER
 W

AY

RUTHERFORD DR

183A TOLL RD

CHARDONNAY XING

YOUNTVILLE DR

SPUMANTI LNJO
RD

AN
 C

V

183A TOLL RD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200

Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 14-Z-029 Attachment #4
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Global Village

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



3A

2A

3A

2A
2A 2A 3B

2A

2A

1B

3A

1C2A

1B

2A
2A

3A

3A

3A

2A

3A

3A

3A

3A

3A

2A

3A

3A

183A TOLL RD SB

183A TOLL RD NB

183A TOLL RD FR SB

183A TOLL RD FR NB

RA
ID

ER
 W

AY

PVR 921PVR 920

VINTA
GE DR

CA
LL

A 
LIL

Y B
LV

D

RUTHERFORD DR

CHARDONNAY XING

E WOODVIEW DR

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

RI
DG

EW
OO

D 
DR

DOWNRIDGE DR

YE
LL

OW
 IR

IS
 R

D

BLOCK HOUSE DR

ST HELENA DR

CALISTOGA DR

LA
MB

RU
SC

O 
LN

LILY PAD LANE

BA
RD

OL
IN

O 
LN

BORDEAUX DR

YOUNTVILLE DR

SPUMANTI LN

NAPA CV

WA
TE

R 
HY

SS
OP

 LO
OP

WA
TE

R 
HY

AC
IN

TH
 LO

OP

JO
RD

AN
 C

V

MADEIRA CV

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-029

Attachment #5
Location Map
Global Village

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction

Mixed Use
Corridor

Community
Center Node

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Community 
Center 



RA
ID

ER
 W

AY

183A TOLL RD SB

183A TOLL RD NB

183A TOLL RD FR SB

183A TOLL RD FR NB

RA
ID

ER
 W

AY

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

RUTHERFORD DR

CHARDONNAY XING

YOUNTVILLE DR

SPUMANTI LN

183A TOLL RD

JO
RD

AN
 C

V

SO
LA

NO
 C

V

183A TOLL RD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-029

Attachment #6
Staff Recommendation
Global Village

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction

Mixed Use
Corridor

Community
Center Node

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Community 
Center 

GC-2-A
29.73 acres

SFT-2-A
13.3 acres

LC-2-A
4.92 acres

LO-2-A
5.11 acres



R031201

R031265

R031199

R0
31

20
4

R353242

R526
321

R497327

R523989

R031213

R031744

R3
24

54
9

R497326

R432787

R0
31

20
6

R0
31

24
8

R0
31

21
5

R5
23

99
1

R031270

R0
51

45
8

R080605

R310336

R426702

R432786 R526319

R5
10

43
0

R4
32

78
5

R354
007

R525358

R526320 R526322
R320075

R0
31

20
0

R0
31

26
9

R0
31

74
3

R3
53

24
1

R5
10

44
9

R525360
R525359

R031205

R0
31

20
3

R031214

R328
187

R525361

R4
32

77
7

R0
31

20
2

R525362

R398592

R430109

R398517

R031346

R426654

R398538

R398560

R398535

R426677

R398502 R398527
R398513

R426696

R398530

R437431

R426669
R426670

R398507

R426675

R437434
R437433

R387033

R426647

R398529

R426655

R426648

R398518

R398528

R398547

R398534

R426674

R398548

R437432

R426695

R437435

R398536

R426676

R437461

R398596

R426672
R426684

R426652

R426665

R398506

R398553

R303343

R426634

R426678

R426660

R426673

R398595

R426679

R398511

R426659

R398512

R426635

R398607

R510443

R426694

R398593

R426680

R398509

R398524

R426656

R426668

R426651

R398559

R437441

R398590

R398549

R426685

R426653

R398520

R426666

R398519

R510442

R398606

R398521

R398537

R426664

R398522R398505

R437442

R398514

R426661

R398556

R426691

R398531

R426650

R398605

R398510

R427441

R426693

R426641

R398558 R427442
R398557 R398561

R426637
R426686

R398554

R437437

R426638

R437436
R426645

R426639

R426644

R426681

R426624

R426640

R426643

R426626
R426625R426627

R398543

R426628
R426629
R426630

R398541

R426632R426619

R398544

R426636

R426620

R398540

R426667

R398542

R437438
R437439

R426642

R426621

R398545

R398539

R437452

R398533
R398532

R398589

R398526

R398585

R398588

R303342

R398546

R398587
R398594

R426646

R398515

R398584R398586
R398581R398583

R426608

R398582

R510436

R510439

R426609

R510440

R510435

R510438

R510433
R510432
R510431

R432784

R510441

R521860

R426611
R426610

R426612
R426613

R437463

R426614
R426615

R426617

R451759R451758

R387034

R398591

183A TOLL RD SB

183A TOLL RD NB

183A TOLL RD FR SB

183A TOLL RD FR NB

RA
ID

ER
 W

AY

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

183A TOLL RD

183A TOLL RD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-029  

Attachment #7
Notification Map
Global Village

CITY MAPË

Public Notice Boundary
Subject Property
WCAD Parcels

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



rstover
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 8





Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

 
ORDINANCE NO # 

 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING TWO PARCELS OF LAND 
FROM INTERIM SFR-1-B (SINGLE-FAMILY RURAL) TO GC-2-A 
(GENERAL COMMERCIAL), LC-2-A (LOCAL COMMERCIAL), LO-2-A 
(LOCAL OFFICE) AND SFT-2-A (SINGLE-FAMILY TOWNHOME); 
MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED 
MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following tract of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property.”  That certain parcels of land being 53.985 acres, more or less, located 
at 10744 E Crystal Falls Pkwy and 7712 183A Toll, Williamson County, Texas, being more 
particularly described in Exhibit “A”, legally described as 53.985 acres out of the Walter Campbell 
Survey, Abstract 3; identified by Williamson County tax identification numbers R031201 and 
R080605; more particularly described in document number 2009000970 recorded in the 
Williamson County Official Public Records. 
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) to GC-2-A (General  
Commercial), LC-2-A (Local Commercial), LO-2-A (Local Office), and SFT-2-A (Single-Family 
Townhome as shown in Exhibit “A”.  
 
  



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 
Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 5th day of November, 2015. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 19th day of November, 2015. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



RIDGEWOODSOUTHPH 1

RIDGEWOODSOUTHPH 2
CRYSTAL SPRINGS

COLD SPRINGS,SEC 5RA
ID

ER
 W

AY

183A TOLL RD SB

183A TOLL RD NB

183A TOLL RD FR SB

183A TOLL RD FR NB

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

RA
ID

ER
 W

AY

RUTHERFORD DR

YOUNTVILLE DR

CHARDONNAY XING

SPUMANTI LN

183A TOLL RD

JO
RD

AN
 C

V

FAUSTINO CV

SO
LA

NO
 C

V

183A TOLL RD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 14-Z-029

Exhibit A
Ordinance Exhibit
Global Village

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction

Community
Center Node

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

GC-2-A
29.73 acres

SFT-2-A
13.3 acres

LC-2-A
4.92 acres

LO-2-A
5.11 acres

+/- 465'

+/- 917'

+/- 1325'

+/- 457'

+/- 1095'

+/- 1297'

+/- 1278'

+/- 499'

+/- 566'

+/- 482'

+/- 572'

+/- 418'

+/- 73'

+/- 289'

+/- 322' +/- 169'

+/- 121'

+/- 143'





AGENDA ITEM # 9 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
November 19, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 15-Z-025: Consider action on the rezoning of a tracts 

of land, for 18.598 acres more or less, located to the northwest of 
the intersection of RM 1431 & Travisso Pkwy, Travis Parcel 
447948. Currently, the property is zoned Interim SFR-1-B (Single 
Family Rural) and the applicant is proposing to zone the property 
PUD (Planned Unit Development), Leander, Travis County, Texas. 

 
Background: This request is the final step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Nancy Stroder on behalf of Travisso, LTD (Taylor 

Morrison of Texas is the Managing partner). 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis. The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval with staff recommendation 
and the condition that the current tree ordinance applies to this 
property at the October 22, 2015 meeting.  The City Council 
unanimously approved the Planning & Zoning Commission 
recommendation at the November 5, 2015 meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3. Proposed Zoning Map 
 4.   Aerial Map 
 5. Notification Map 
 6. PUD Notes & Conceptual Site Layout & Land Use Plan 
 7.  Letter of Intent 
 8. Ordinance  
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 11/12/2015 



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 15-Z-025 

TRAVISSO PUD 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Travisso, LTD (Taylor Morrison Homes of Texas, Inc) 
 
Current Zoning: Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) 
    
Proposed Zoning: PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
  
Size and Location: The property is generally located to the northwest of the intersection of 

RM 1431 & Travisso Pkwy and is approximately 18.598 acres in size. 
 
Staff Contact:   Robin M. Griffin, AICP   
 Senior Planner      
   
ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH PUD Proposed Travisso Subdivision 

EAST PUD Proposed Travisso Subdivision 

SOUTH OCL Existing non-residential use 

WEST OCL Established Single-Family Homes located outside the City 
Limits 

        

  

1 
 



Attachment # 1                 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
 
USE COMPONENTS:   

PUD – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT: 
The purpose and intent of the Planned Unit Development (PUD) district is to design unified 
standards for development in order to facilitate flexible, customized zoning and subdivision 
standards which encourage imaginative and innovative designs for the development of 
property within the City.  The intent of this zoning request is to provide for the design of a 
development which permits a mixed-residential community.  This integrated project will 
include a blend of single-family, multiple family housing types and commercial 
development.  The intent of this zoning district is to cohesively regulate the development to 
assure compatibility with adjacent single-family residences, neighborhoods, and commercial 
properties within the region. 

  
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Provide for a variety of sustainable housing options for all age groups and economic 

levels.  Determine ways to successfully integrate this variety within neighborhoods so as 
to accommodate the different needs of families throughout their life cycle.  Create more 
desirable and livable neighborhoods while respecting the goal of maintaining stable real 
estate values and housing marketability. 

 Establish high standards for development. 
 

 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting rezone this property to PUD (Planned Unit Development) district in 
order to allow for the development of a mixed residential community.  The proposal includes 
residential lot widths ranging from as narrow as forty (40’) feet to over one hundred twenty 
(120’) feet wide.  The intent is to incorporate this property into the current Travisso PUD.  The 
property is currently subject to a boundary agreement with the City of Jonestown.  Once this 
boundary agreement is executed, the property will be located within the City of Leander’s City 
Limits.  The second reading of the ordinance cannot occur until after the property is within the 
City Limits. 
 
PROPOSED USE COMPONENTS 
The PUD proposal includes one zoning district:  RES (Residential).  The RES district permits the 
uses allowed in the SFC (Single-Family Compact), SFU (Single-Family Urban), SFS (Single-
Family Suburban), SFE (Single-Family Estate), and SFR (Single-Family Rural) use components.  
The overall Travisso Subdivision property will be developed to include not less than 2,100 and 
not more than 3,173 single-family residential lots.  The Development Agreement limits the 
maximum density to 3,173 units.   
 

2 
 



Attachment # 1                 

The table below identifies the permitted percentages of the residential use components. 
 

Use RES 
District 

Allowed 
Percent 

Single Family Compact (SFC) X 20% max 
Single Family Urban (SFU) X N/A 
Single Family Suburban (SFS) X 20% min 
Single Family Estate (SFE) X 25% min 
Single Family Rural (SFR) X 

 
 
PROPOSED SITE & ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENTS 
The site component for the RES District will comply with the Type 2 site component.  The 
proposed architectural component will include 65% masonry overall, 85% masonry for the front 
elevation, 100% masonry for the first floor all sides, and 100% masonry for the second floor side 
and rear facing walls when facing a street or greenbelt.  The Type A architectural component as 
listed in the Composite Zoning Ordinance requires 85% masonry for the entire structure. 
 
This proposed PUD will follow the established standards for the existing Travisso PUD. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested PUD.  The proposed PUD meets the intent of the 
current zoning, while allowing more flexibility with the location of the single-family districts.  
This application effectively utilizes composite zoning to incorporate a variety of land uses while 
maintaining high form standards.  The modification to the architectural requirements increases 
the amount of masonry for the portion of the homes that is visible from the street and greenbelt 
areas.  This requirement is reduced to a percentage that is between the Type A and Type B, 
however, the homes visible from the streets and greenbelts will be 100% masonry.  The 
requested PUD is consistent with the current Travisso PUD standards, and meets the intent 
statements of the Composite Zoning Ordinance and the goals of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

3 
 



! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! ! !

! ! ! !! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 5

TRAVISSOSEC 1

FM 1431 RD

TRAVISSO PKWY

VENEZIA VW
BENETTON WAY

PIANA PL

GOOD NIGHT TRL

AN
GE

L S
ID

E D
R

LONE MOUNTAIN PASS

AN
GE

L S
PR

IN
GS

 D
R

CASTELLA CV

BELLADOMA CV

PAVIA PASS

MO
NT

EL
LO

 CT

VE
NE

TO
 CI

R

LIV
ENZA PL

VENEZIA VWTRAVISSO PKWY

VENEZIA VW

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-025  Attachment #2 Current Zoning Map - Travisso

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! ! !

! ! ! !! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

!
!

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 5

TRAVISSOSEC 1

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

FM 1431 RD

TRAVISSO PKWY

VENEZIA VW
BENETTON WAY

PIANA PL

LONE MOUNTAIN PASS

GOOD NIGHT TRL

AN
GE

L S
ID

E D
R

AN
GE

L S
PR

IN
GS

 D
R

CASTELLA CV

BELLADOMA CV

PAVIA PASS

VE
NE

TO
 CI

R

LIV
ENZA PL

VENEZIA VW

TRAVISSO PKWY

VENEZIA VW

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-025  Attachment #3 Proposed Zoning Map - Travisso

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! ! PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



FM 1431 RD

TRAVISSO PKWY

ANGEL SIDE DR

AN
GE

L S
PR

IN
GS

 D
R

CASTELLA CV

BENETTON WAY

ANGEL WING DR

VENEZIA VW

TRAVISSO PKWY

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200

Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 15-Z-025 Attachment #4
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
Travisso PUD - 18 Acres

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



863593

857393

353024

447948

447947

860693

842650

447961

819093

557123

447960

447939

842580
447938

447959

447940

447944

447956
447951

447949

447950

447945

447942

447941

557124 844578

447943

842579

84
45

88844587

842
560

84
45

81
84

45
49

844586

860678

844583
844582

844580

860671

842564

844740

844545

860651

860669
860670

844548

447946

844585

860652

844547

860668
860667

860653

860666

860658
860657

860654
860660 860655

860656

860659

860665

844595

860664860663
860662

844579

353032

431220

844550

844596

TRAVISSO PKWY

AN
GE

L S
PR

IN
GS

 D
R

VENEZIA VW

AN
GE

L S
ID

E 
DR

ANGEL WING DR

PAVIA PASS

TRAVISSO PKWY

TRAVISSO PKWY

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-025 

Attachment #5
Notification Map
Travisso PUD - 18 Acres

CITY MAPË

Public Notification Boundary
Subject Property
TCAD Parcels

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



EXHIBIT C 

 
Travisso Planned Unit Development  

 
I. General Notes 

 
A. The PUD consists of approximately 18.598 acres (the “Property”) located in Travis 

County, Leander, Texas, as particularly described in Exhibit A

 

 attached to this PUD 
ordinance. 

B. Except as otherwise provided in this PUD ordinance, the Property and PUD shall be 
governed by the Composite Zoning Ordinance of the City of Leander in effect as of the 
date of this PUD Ordinance (the “Zoning Ordinance

II. Zoning Districts 

”).  Any capitalized terms used 
herein but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Zoning 
Ordinance. 

A. The PUD consists of one use district depicted on Exhibit 1, the Conceptual Site Layout & 
Land Use Plan
1. RES (Residential) containing approximately 18.598 acres. 

 attached hereto, including:  

III. Use Components  

A. 

1. The Overall Travisso Subdivision will be developed to include not less than 2,100 
and not more than 3,173 single-family residential lots. 

RES District Permitted Uses and Limitations for the overall Travisso Subdivision 

2. Single-family residential lots in the RES District may be developed by the owner of 
the Property utilizing SFC, SFE, SFR, SFU and SFS Use Components, as more 
particularly set forth in Exhibit 2

(a) SFC – the maximum percentage of SFC lots allowed to be developed in the 
project is 20% of the total lots developed in the PUD (635 lots, if the maximum 
3,173 single-family residential lots are developed in the PUD); 

 attached to this PUD ordinance, in accordance with 
the following requirements.  This 18.598 acre tract will be developed as part of the 
overall Travisso Subdivision.  The percentage of residential use components shall be 
calculated for the overall Travisso Subdivision as follows: 

(b) SFE and SFR – the minimum percentage of SFE and SFR lots is 25% of the total 
lots developed in the PUD (793 lots, if the maximum 3,173 single-family 
residential lots are developed in the PUD); and  

(c) SFU and SFS –any lots not developed as SFC lots may be developed as SFU, 
SFS, SFE, and SFR lots; the minimum percentage of SFS lots is 20% of the total 
lots developed in the PUD, provided the PUD shall not include more than 3,173 
single-family residential lots. 



 
IV. Site and Architectural Components and Standards 

A. RES District.   
1. Development Standards for each Use Component are shown on the table attached as 

Exhibit 2 to this PUD ordinance.  This table sets out lot size, home size, setback, 
architectural, masonry, and landscaping, increasing the standards of many traditional 
zoning categories.  To the extent that these requirements are inconsistent with the 
requirements of Article V (Site Components), Article VI (Site Standards), Article VII 
(Architectural Components), and Article VIII (Architectural Standards) of the Zoning 
Ordinance, the Development Standards set forth in this PUD ordinance and Exhibit 2 
attached hereto will apply.   

2. Development in the RES District of the PUD will comply with the Type 2 site 
component. 

3. Garages associated with lots designated with the SFC use component shall be able to 
protrude five feet in front of the dwelling regardless of the lot width. 

 
V. Signage 

A. Tertiary entrance signs constructed within the PUD shall be regulated by Ordinance No. 
03-023-00 and the Zoning Ordinance, with the following exceptions.  Tertiary entrance 
signs may be located at the entryway into sections within the PUD and are permitted only 
in subdivisions that exceed fifty (50) acres. They may be used to identify various sections 
that are fifteen (15) acres or greater in size in order to enhance direction within the 
PUD.Tertiary entrance signs shall be comprised entirely of stone or masonry, with 
engraved lettering set within the stone or with pin-mounted aluminum or steel letters.  
The sign face of tertiary entrance signs shall be limited to a total size of twelve (12) 
square feet.  The owner shall submit to the city restrictive covenants providing for 
perpetual maintenance of such signs by the homeowners’ association for Travisso before 
a permit will be issued for such signs. 
 

VI. Lighting  
A. Lighting constructed or installed within the PUD shall be regulated by Section 12 of 

Article V (Site Component) of the Zoning Ordinance in effect as of the date of this PUD 
Ordinance; provided, however, that all street lighting along Travisso Parkway will be 
decorative poles with energy efficient LED light fixtures. 
 

VII. Fencing 
A. Fencing will be limited to wrought iron or tubular metal when constructed along 

greenbelts. 
 

VIII. Landscaping 
A. The current Tree Ordinance (adopted as part of ordinance 15-018-00) shall apply to this 

portion of the Travisso Subdivision. 



 
Exhibit 1 

Conceptual Site Layout & Land Use Plan 
 

  





Exhibit 2 
 

RES District Development Standards 
 

 

 



Zoning Use 
Component

Lot 
Width

Lot 
Depth 

Lot 
Area

Lot 
Width

Lot 
Depth 

Lot 
Area

Building 
Sq Foot Front Setback

Side 
Setbacks

Street 
Side 

Setback
Rear 

Setback Architectural / Masonry Req Landscaping

65% - Overall Trees: 2 x 3" hardwood

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 20 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 20 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 
greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 
ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

65% - Overall Trees: 2 x 3" hardwood, 1 x 2" ornamental 

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 20 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 20 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 
greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 
ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

65% - Overall Trees: 3 x 3" hardwood, 1 x 2" ornamental

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 25 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 25 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 
greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 
ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

65% - Overall Trees: 4 x 3" hardwood, 1 x 2" ornamental

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 30 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 30 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 
greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 
ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

65% - Overall Trees: 4 x 3" hardwood, 2 x 2" ornamental

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 40 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 40 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 
greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 
ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

GENERAL NOTES OG - Ornamental Grasses
GC - Ground Cover 
P - Perennials

SFR 120 160 19200 3000120 160 19200 1525 (30 street facing 
garage) 7.5

15 (20 
street 
facing 

garage)

15SFE 80 150 12000 260090 150 13500

20 (25 street facing 
garage) 5

15 (20 
street 
facing 

garage)

20 (25 street facing 
garage) 7.5

15 (20 
street 
facing 

garage)

15

SFS 70 130 9100 2400 20 (25 street facing 
garage) 5

15 (20 
street 
facing 

garage)

15

SFU 60 130 7800 185070

RES DISTRICT MINIMUM STANDARDS

SFC 50 130 6500 1400 20 (25 street facing 
garage) 5

15 (20 
street 
facing 

garage)

107800

Interior Corner

60 130

130 9100

80 130 10400



rstover
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 7





Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

ORDINANCE NO #  
 

ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING A PARCEL OF LAND FROM 
INTERIM SFR-1-B (SINGLE-FAMILY RURAL) TO PUD (PLANNED 
UNIT DEVELOPMENT); MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following parcel of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property:”  That certain parcels of land being 18.598 acres, more or less, located 
in Leander, Williamson County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “B”, generally 
located to the northwest of the intersection of RM 1431 and Travisso Parkway; legally described 
as 18.598 acres more or less out of the Jose Antonio Ybarbo Survey 421 more particularly described 
in Document Number 2012217299 Official Public Records of Travis County, Texas, and identified 
by tax identification number 447948.  
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from Interim SFR-1-B (Single-Family Rural) to PUD (Planned Unit 
Development) known as the Travisso II PUD.  The PUD shall be developed and occupied in 
accordance with this Ordinance, the PUD plan attached as Exhibits “A”, “B”, and “C”, which are 
hereby adopted and incorporated herein for all purposes, and the Composite Zoning Ordinance to 
the extent not amended by this Ordinance.  In the event of a conflict between the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance and the requirements for the Property set forth in this Ordinance, this 
Ordinance shall control.   
 



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 
Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 5th day of November, 2015. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 19th day of November, 2015. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 





! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! ! !

! ! ! !! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

!
!

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !
! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! !

! !

! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !
! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

GRAND MESA
AT CRYSTAL FALLS,

SEC 5

TRAVISSOSEC 1

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

FM 1431 RD

TRAVISSO PKWY

VENEZIA VW
BENETTON WAY

PIANA PL

LONE MOUNTAIN PASS

GOOD NIGHT TRL

AN
GE

L S
ID

E D
R

AN
GE

L S
PR

IN
GS

 D
R

CASTELLA CV

BELLADOMA CV

PAVIA PASS

VE
NE

TO
 CI

R

LIV
ENZA PL

VENEZIA VW

TRAVISSO PKWY

VENEZIA VW

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±
0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-025  Exhibit B Zoning Map - Travisso

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits ! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Commercial

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !
! ! ! !
! ! ! !

PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! ! PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! ! PUD Townhome

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



EXHIBIT C 

 
Travisso Planned Unit Development  

 
I. General Notes 

 
A. The PUD consists of approximately 18.598 acres (the “Property”) located in Travis 

County, Leander, Texas, as particularly described in Exhibit A attached to this PUD 
ordinance. 

 
B. Except as otherwise provided in this PUD ordinance, the Property and PUD shall be 

governed by the Composite Zoning Ordinance of the City of Leander in effect as of the 
date of this PUD Ordinance (the “Zoning Ordinance”).  Any capitalized terms used 
herein but not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Zoning 
Ordinance. 

II. Zoning Districts 

A. The PUD consists of one use district depicted on Exhibit 1, the Conceptual Site Layout & 
Land Use Plan attached hereto, including:  
1. RES (Residential) containing approximately 18.598 acres. 

III. Use Components  

A. RES District Permitted Uses and Limitations for the overall Travisso Subdivision 

1. The Overall Travisso Subdivision will be developed to include not less than 2,100 
and not more than 3,173 single-family residential lots. 

2. Single-family residential lots in the RES District may be developed by the owner of 
the Property utilizing SFC, SFE, SFR, SFU and SFS Use Components, as more 
particularly set forth in Exhibit 2 attached to this PUD ordinance, in accordance with 
the following requirements.  This 18.598 acre tract will be developed as part of the 
overall Travisso Subdivision.  The percentage of residential use components shall be 
calculated for the overall Travisso Subdivision as follows: 
(a) SFC – the maximum percentage of SFC lots allowed to be developed in the 

project is 20% of the total lots developed in the PUD (635 lots, if the maximum 
3,173 single-family residential lots are developed in the PUD); 

(b) SFE and SFR – the minimum percentage of SFE and SFR lots is 25% of the total 
lots developed in the PUD (793 lots, if the maximum 3,173 single-family 
residential lots are developed in the PUD); and  

(c) SFU and SFS –any lots not developed as SFC lots may be developed as SFU, 
SFS, SFE, and SFR lots; the minimum percentage of SFS lots is 20% of the total 
lots developed in the PUD, provided the PUD shall not include more than 3,173 
single-family residential lots. 



 
IV. Site and Architectural Components and Standards 

A. RES District.   
1. Development Standards for each Use Component are shown on the table attached as 

Exhibit 2 to this PUD ordinance.  This table sets out lot size, home size, setback, 
architectural, masonry, and landscaping, increasing the standards of many traditional 
zoning categories.  To the extent that these requirements are inconsistent with the 
requirements of Article V (Site Components), Article VI (Site Standards), Article VII 
(Architectural Components), and Article VIII (Architectural Standards) of the Zoning 
Ordinance, the Development Standards set forth in this PUD ordinance and Exhibit 2 
attached hereto will apply.   

2. Development in the RES District of the PUD will comply with the Type 2 site 
component. 

3. Garages associated with lots designated with the SFC use component shall be able to 
protrude five feet in front of the dwelling regardless of the lot width. 

 
V. Signage 

A. Tertiary entrance signs constructed within the PUD shall be regulated by Ordinance No. 
03-023-00 and the Zoning Ordinance, with the following exceptions.  Tertiary entrance 
signs may be located at the entryway into sections within the PUD and are permitted only 
in subdivisions that exceed fifty (50) acres. They may be used to identify various sections 
that are fifteen (15) acres or greater in size in order to enhance direction within the 
PUD.Tertiary entrance signs shall be comprised entirely of stone or masonry, with 
engraved lettering set within the stone or with pin-mounted aluminum or steel letters.  
The sign face of tertiary entrance signs shall be limited to a total size of twelve (12) 
square feet.  The owner shall submit to the city restrictive covenants providing for 
perpetual maintenance of such signs by the homeowners’ association for Travisso before 
a permit will be issued for such signs. 
 

VI. Lighting  
A. Lighting constructed or installed within the PUD shall be regulated by Section 12 of 

Article V (Site Component) of the Zoning Ordinance in effect as of the date of this PUD 
Ordinance; provided, however, that all street lighting along Travisso Parkway will be 
decorative poles with energy efficient LED light fixtures. 
 

VII. Fencing 
A. Fencing will be limited to wrought iron or tubular metal when constructed along 

greenbelts. 
 

VIII. Landscaping 
A. The current Tree Ordinance shall apply to this portion of the Travisso Subdivision. 



Exhibit 1 
 

Conceptual Site Layout & Land Use Plan 
 

  





Exhibit 2 
 

RES District Development Standards 
 

 

 



Zoning Use 
Component

Lot 
Width

Lot 
Depth 

Lot 
Area

Lot 
Width

Lot 
Depth 

Lot 
Area

Building 
Sq Foot Front Setback

Side 
Setbacks

Street 
Side 

Setback
Rear 

Setback Architectural / Masonry Req Landscaping

65% - Overall Trees: 2 x 3" hardwood

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 20 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 20 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 
greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 
ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

65% - Overall Trees: 2 x 3" hardwood, 1 x 2" ornamental 

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 20 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 20 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 
greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 
ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

65% - Overall Trees: 3 x 3" hardwood, 1 x 2" ornamental

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 25 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 25 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 
greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 
ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

65% - Overall Trees: 4 x 3" hardwood, 1 x 2" ornamental

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 30 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 30 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 
greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 
ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

65% - Overall Trees: 4 x 3" hardwood, 2 x 2" ornamental

85%  Front Elev Shrubs - 40 x 5 Gal

100% - Sides & rear on one story homes Shrubs - 40 x 1 Gal - OG, GC, P

100% - 1st Floor all sides on two story homes Turf - Bermuda or Zoysia

100% - 2nd Floor Side & Rear facing street & 
greenbelts

AC Units, Dry Utility pedestals must be screened.  24" min 
ht at planting 36" w/in 1-2 years

GENERAL NOTES OG - Ornamental Grasses
GC - Ground Cover 
P - Perennials

SFR 120 160 19200 3000120 160 19200 1525 (30 street facing 
garage) 7.5

15 (20 
street 
facing 

garage)

15SFE 80 150 12000 260090 150 13500

20 (25 street facing 
garage) 5

15 (20 
street 
facing 

garage)

20 (25 street facing 
garage) 7.5

15 (20 
street 
facing 

garage)

15

SFS 70 130 9100 2400 20 (25 street facing 
garage) 5

15 (20 
street 
facing 

garage)

15

SFU 60 130 7800 185070

RES DISTRICT MINIMUM STANDARDS

SFC 50 130 6500 1400 20 (25 street facing 
garage) 5

15 (20 
street 
facing 

garage)

107800

Interior Corner

60 130

130 9100

80 130 10400



AGENDA ITEM # 10 

 

 

Executive Summary 

November 19, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Receive Quarterly Investment Report for the period ending   
9/30/2015. 
 
Background:  State law requires that the governing body be presented with a quarterly 
report outlining the City’s investments.  The period covered in this report is July through 
September 2015.  The average interest rates in TexPool for the quarter, rose slightly from 
0.0551% to 0.0732%.  TexSTAR’s average for the quarter ended slightly better at 
0.0846%.  As of 9/30/15, our earnings credit rate at our depository bank (Frost Bank) was 
at 0.34%.  Beginning 7/1/15, our new bank depository moved to Frost Bank, but we 
continue to have some funds in Bank of America until the account is fully closed out. 
LISD GO Bonds purchased in February 2014 (Par $4,655,000 with 2% coupon / 0.18% 
yield) matured on 8/15/15.  At 9/30/15, the Fed funds target rate remained within the zero 
to 0.25% range, and quarterly averages for the 3-month T-bill moved up slightly to 
0.02% from 0.01% in the previous quarter.  The 6-month T-bill average increased to 
0.18%, up from at 0.09%. 
 
The Weighted Average Maturity (WAM) at 9/30/15 was 58.29 days, down from 80.25 
days at the end of June and the weighted average yield ticked up from 0.1772% to 
0.1850% due to the increasing rates at TexPool and TexStar.   
 
Origination:  Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 
Financial Consideration:  n.a. 
 
Recommendation:  n.a. 
 
Attachments:   Quarterly Investment Report 
 
Prepared by:   Robert G. Powers, Finance Director 
 



Investment / Invest. Fund G/L Settlement Coupon Current Maturity/ Paid Principal/ Market Interest 

Source of Funds Account Name Type** Fund Type*   Acct # Date Rate Yield to Mty Call Date Current Balance Value 0ct-Sep

Cash In Bank

Frost & Bank of America Operating I 5 Consolidated F1 99-00-1110 0.2693% 11,386,358.04$             11,386,358.04$               18,728.88$                        

Chase Money Market I 7 GF Debt Service F4 80-00-1122 0.0300% 582,183.17$                   582,183.17$                     817.33$                             

Chase Money Market I 7 Utility F1 20-00-1122 0.0300% 1,441,975.69$               1,441,975.69$                  378.43$                             

East West Bank Money Market I 7 Consolidated F1 99-00-1000 0.2000% 1,002,983.66$               1,002,983.66$                  1,930.64$                          

East West Bank Money Market I 7 2015 CO's F2 54-00-1000 0.2000% 7,006,585.62$               7,006,585.62$                  6,585.62$                          

Texas Capital Bank Money Market I 7 Consolidated F1 99-00-1000 0.3000% 245,703.24$                   245,703.24$                     703.24$                             

Subtotal Cash in Bank 21,665,789.42$             21,665,789.42$               29,144.14$                        

U.S. Agencies & Instrumentalities & Municipal Bonds

Leander ISD GO Ser 2014 52184CV6 I 2 Consolidated F1 99-00-1000 2/20/14 2.0000% 0.1810% 08/15/2015 -$                                -$                                  7,931.88$                          

FHLMC / Bank of America 3134G5E76 I 2 Consolidated F1 99-00-1000 8/19/14 0.7000% 0.7000% 11/19/2014 -$                                -$                                  2,333.32$                          

FHLB / Bank of America 3130A4JV5 I 2 Consolidated F1 99-00-1000 3/30/15 0.4000% 0.4000% 06/30/2015 -$                                -$                                  4,000.00$                          

Leander ISD Ref CABS 521841GD2 I 2 Consolidated F1 99-00-1000 6/25/15 0.0000% 0.7610% 05/15/2016 495,695.00$                   497,515.00$                     51.67$                               

Marysville OH Wstwtr Sys Revenue Bonds57448RDR8 I 2 Capital Projects F2 54-00-1000 4/22/15 3.0000% 0.3010% 12/01/2015 254,097.50$                   251,017.50$                     337.36$                             

Duluth MN ISD GO Ref 264471KK8 I 2 Capital Projects F2 54-00-1000 4/16/15 2.0000% 0.3300% 02/01/2016 531,924.75$                   528,013.50$                     803.13$                             

Spring TX ISD Ref Ser A 850000X70 I 2 Capital Projects F2 54-00-1000 4/16/15 4.0000% 0.3010% 02/15/2016 401,957.40 395,015.40$                     553.57$                             

Tompkins County NY GO 890091SA0 I 2 Capital Projects F2 54-00-1000 4/16/15 3.0000% 0.3100% 02/15/2016 664,488.50$                   656,506.50$                     942.48$                             

Miss State Dev Bank Rev Bnds 60534TCU7 I 2 Capital Projects F2 54-00-1000 4/16/15 2.0000% 0.3600% 04/01/2016 558,646.00$                   553,619.00$                     920.16$                             

Suffolk County NY GO 86476PPT9 I 2 Capital Projects F2 54-00-1000 4/30/15 1.2500% 0.3710% 04/29/2016 1,763,331.99$               1,757,108.92$                  2,742.25$                          

Bentonville AR Sch Dist GO 083419ZR5 I 2 Capital Projects F2 54-00-1000 4/30/15 2.0000% 0.3510% 06/01/2016 951,699.10$                   945,200.85$                     1,400.25$                          

Holbrook MA Ref GO 434722HK3 I 2 Capital Projects F2 54-00-1000 4/16/15 5.0000% 0.4700% 06/15/2016 842,008.00$                   826,120.00$                     1,810.66$                          

Okla St Cap Impr Auth Rev Bnds 679088AD6 I 2 Capital Projects F2 54-00-1000 4/16/15 2.0000% 0.3610% 07/15/2016 341,629.65$                   339,251.15$                     564.27$                             

Canandaigua NY Sch Dist GO 137177SE2 I 2 Capital Projects F2 54-00-1000 4/28/15 3.0000% 0.3700% 07/15/2016 314,705.10$                   311,014.60$                     494.47$                             

Lebanon IN Comm Sch Corp GO 522508AY6 I 2 Capital Projects F2 54-00-1000 4/16/15 1.0000% 0.4510% 07/15/2016 216,470.60$                   216,072.85$                     446.68$                             

FHLB 3130A3CE2 I 2 Capital Projects F2 54-00-1000 4/15/15 0.6250% 0.5150% 10/14/2016 3,505,740.00$               3,506,314.00$                  8,310.04$                          

Subtotal Agencies 10,842,393.59$             10,782,769.27$               33,642.21$                        

Certificates of Deposit

Unity National Bank/CDARS Operating I 3 Consolidated F1 99-00-1000 12/26/14 0.4000% 12/24/2015 1,003,062.18$               1,003,062.18$                  3,812.18$                          

Texas Capital Bank Operating I 3 Consolidated F1 99-00-1000 10/20/13 10/20/2014 -$                                -$                                  51.10$                               

East West Bank Operating I 3 Consolidated F1 99-00-1000 11/14/14 0.4500% 11/14/2015 4,520,299.79$               4,520,299.79$                  20,299.79$                        

Subtotal Certificates of Deposit 5,523,361.97$               5,523,361.97$                  24,163.07$                        

Investment Pools

TexPool General Fund I&S I 4 Debt Service F6 80-00-1510 0.0732% 763,072.04$                   763,072.04$                     1,632.31$                          

TexPool Consolidated Operating I 4 Consolidated F1 99-00-1520 0.0732% 13,450,422.61$             13,450,422.61$               4,790.81$                          

Quarterly Investment Report

City of Leander

Period Ending

9/30/15

Quarterly Investment Report 13 11/12/2015



Investment / Invest. Fund G/L Settlement Coupon Current Maturity/ Paid Principal/ Market Interest 

Source of Funds Account Name Type** Fund Type*   Acct # Date Rate Yield to Mty Call Date Current Balance Value 0ct-Sep

Quarterly Investment Report

City of Leander

Period Ending

9/30/15

TexPool Utility Customer Deposit I 4 Utility Fund F3 99-00-1521 0.0732% 5,936.80$                       5,936.80$                         3.19$                                 

TexPool Utility I&S I 4 UF Debt Service F6 85-00-1501 0.0732% 151,828.42$                   151,828.42$                     78.34$                               

TexPool TIRZ No. 1 I 4 Capital Projects F1 79-00-1541 0.0732% 780.04$                          780.04$                            1.64$                                 

TexPool BCRUA Contract I 4 Capital Projects F1 20-00-1500 0.0732% 10,603.61$                     10,603.61$                       5.54$                                 

Subtotal TexPool 14,382,643.52$             14,382,643.52$               6,511.83$                          

TexStar BCRUA Reserve I 4 Consolidated F5 20-00-1525 0.0846% 498,360.73$                   498,360.73$                     322.25$                             

TexStar 6M Series 2010 I 4 Capital Projects F2 53-00-1127 -$                                -$                                  82.10$                               

TexStar Capital Asset Fund I 4 Capital Projects F2 14-00-1505 0.0846% 5.19$                              5.19$                                -$                                   

TexStar $24M Series 2015 CO I 4 Capital Projects F2 54-00-1128 0.0846% 610,430.16$                   610,430.16$                     3,001.39$                          

Subtotal TexStar 1,108,796.08$               1,108,796.08$                  3,405.74$                          

TexasDAILY Consolidated Operating I 4 Consolidated F1 99-00-1522 0.0900% 1,047,476.32$               1,047,476.32$                  896.13$                             

Subtotal TexasTERM 1,047,476.32$               1,047,476.32$                  896.13$                             

Total All Funds 0.1850% 54,570,460.90$             54,510,836.58$               97,763.12$                        

Quarterly Investment Report 23 11/12/2015



Investment / Invest. Fund G/L Settlement Coupon Current Maturity/ Paid Principal/ Market Interest 

Source of Funds Account Name Type** Fund Type*   Acct # Date Rate Yield to Mty Call Date Current Balance Value 0ct-Sep

Quarterly Investment Report

City of Leander

Period Ending

9/30/15

Code Code Description: % Authorized Current %

F 1 Current Operating Funds I 1 U.S. Treasuries (Notes,Bills, Bonds) 100% 0%

F 2 Bond Proceeds I 2 U.S. Agencies & Instrumentalities & Muni Bonds 100% 20%

F 3 Utility Deposit Proceeds I 3 Certificates of Deposit 100% 10%

F 4 Debt Service Funds I 4 Eligible Investment Pools 100% 30% 

F 5 Bond Reserve Funds I 5 Demand Account 100% 21%

F 6 I&S Reserve Funds I 6 Investment Sweep 100% 0%

F 7 Restricted I 7 Money Market 19%

Book Value: As of 9/30/15 As of 6/30/15 Change Total 100%

U.S. Treasuries (Notes,Bills, Bonds) I 1 0.00 0.00 0.00

U.S. Agencies & Instrumentalities & Muni Bonds I 2 10,842,393.59 15,623,032.04 (4,780,638.45)

Certificates of Deposit I 3 5,523,361.97 5,516,897.59 6,464.38

Eligible Investment Pools I 4 16,538,915.92 17,866,931.28 (1,328,015.36)

Demand Account I 5 11,386,358.04 9,868,321.00 1,518,037.04

Investment Sweep I 6 0.00 0.00 0.00

Money Market I 7 10,279,431.38 12,275,074.20 (1,995,642.82)

Total Book Value 54,570,460.90 61,150,256.11 (6,579,795.21)

WEIGHTED AVERAGE MATURITY (days) 58.29 80.25 (21.96)

WEIGHTED AVERAGE YIELD 0.1850% 0.1772% 0.0078%

Market Value: As of 9/30/15 As of 6/30/15 Change

U.S. Treasuries (Notes,Bills, Bonds) I 1 0.00 0.00 0.00 Certification: 

U.S. Agencies & Instrumentalities & Muni Bonds I 2 10,782,769.27 15,472,036.67 (4,689,267.40)

Certificates of Deposit I 3 5,523,361.97 5,516,897.59 6,464.38

Eligible Investment Pools I 4 16,538,915.92 17,866,931.28 (1,328,015.36)

Demand Account I 5 11,386,358.04 9,868,321.00 1,518,037.04

Investment Sweep I 6 0.00 0.00 0.00 _____________________________________________________________________ _______________

Money Market I 7 10,279,431.38 12,275,074.20 (1,995,642.82) Investment Officer: Date

Total Market Value 54,510,836.58 60,999,260.74 (6,488,424.16) Robert G. Powers, Finance Director

Gain/(Loss) (59,624.32) (150,995.37)

Description:

This is to certify that the Investment Report submitted herewith complies in all 

respects with the Public Funds Investment Act Sec 2256 of the Government Code.

*Fund Types: **Investment Types:

Quarterly Investment Report 33 11/12/2015



AGENDA ITEM # 11 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
November 19, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: License Agreement 14-LA-004:  Consideration of a License 

Agreement for the installation and maintenance landscaping, 
signage and irrigation located within the City right-of-way within 
the Hazlewood Subdivision. 

 
Background: DR Horton is requesting a license agreement to construct, install, 

and maintain landscaping and irrigation located within the ROW of 
Leonards Pass and Muzzie Lane in the Hazlewood Subdivision. 

 
Origination: Applicant: Bill Barton on behalf of DR Horton. 
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the license agreement.   
 
Attachments: 1.  License Agreement  
 2.  Location Exhibit 
 3.  Request Letter 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager   11/09/2015 



 
 LICENSE AGREEMENT 
 
The City of Leander, a Texas home-rule municipal corporation and political subdivision of the 
State of Texas situated in Williamson and Travis County, Texas (“the City”), and Continental 
Homes of Texas, LP (the “Licensee”), enter into this License Agreement (“Agreement”) on this 
the 19th day of November, 2015, upon the terms and conditions set forth below. 
 
I.  PURPOSE OF LICENSE AGREEMENT.  The City grants to Licensee permission to use 
the property, located within the rights-of-way of Leonards Pass and Muzzie Lane adjacent to Lot 
13, Block C, Hazlewood Phase 2A Subdivision shown on  Exhibit “A” attached hereto and 
incorporated herein for all  purposes (the "licensed property"), for the following purposes only: 
(1) the installation of landscaping; (2) the installation of an irrigation system for the landscaping; 
and (3) the repair, maintenance and replacement of the landscaping and irrigation system, within 
rights-of-way of Leonards Pass and Muzzie Lane adjacent to Lot 13, Block C, Hazlewood Phase 
2A Subdivision shown on Exhibit "A" hereto. The landscaping and irrigation system are 
sometimes collectively referred to herein as the “improvements”. 
 
 The City makes this grant solely to the extent of its right, title and interest in the licensed 
property, without any express or implied warranties. 
 
 Licensee agrees that all construction installation and maintenance permitted by this 
Agreement shall be done in compliance with plans and specifications approved in writing by the 
City Engineer and all applicable City, County, State and/or Federal laws, ordinances, regulations 
and policies now existing or later adopted. 
 
 Any provision herein to the contrary notwithstanding, Licensee shall be liable for, and 
shall indemnify and hold the City harmless from all damages, causes of action, and claims 
arising out of or in connection with Licensee's installation, operation, maintenance or removal of 
the improvements permitted under this Agreement. 
 
II.  ANNUAL FEE.  No annual fee shall be due in connection with this License Agreement. 
 
III.  CITY'S RIGHT TO LICENSED PROPERTY.  This Agreement is expressly subject and 
subordinate to the present and future right of the City, its successors, assigns, lessees, grantees, 
and Licensee, to construct, install, establish, maintain, use, operate, and renew any public utilities 
facilities, franchised public utilities, rights-of-way, roadways, or streets on, beneath, or above the 
surface of the licensed property.  The uses of the licensed property are subject to the City’s right 
to interfere with or destroy Licensee's use of the licensed property, or any property or the 
improvements placed thereon or therein by Licensee, if such use or action is determined 
necessary by the City.  
 
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, the City retains the right to 
enter upon the licensed property, at any time and without notice, and assuming no obligation to 
Licensee, to remove any of the improvements or alterations thereof whenever such removal is 

 
1 



 
deemed necessary for: (a) exercising the City's rights or duties with respect to the licensed 
property; (b) protecting persons or property; or (c) the public health or safety. 
 
IV.  INSURANCE.  Licensee shall, at its sole expense, provide a commercial general liability 
insurance policy, written by a company acceptable to the city and licensed to do business in 
Texas, with a combined single limit of not less than $600,000.00, which coverage may be 
provided in the form of a rider and/or endorsement to a previously existing insurance policy.  
The City may require the Licensee to increase the combined single limit of such coverage from 
time to time in the discretion of the City.  Such insurance coverage shall specifically name the 
City as an additional-insured.  The insurance shall cover all perils arising from the activities of 
Licensee, its officers, employees, agents, or contractors, relative to this Agreement.  Licensee 
shall be responsible for any deductibles stated in the policy.  A true copy of each such policy 
shall be delivered to the City Manager of City on or before the Licensee’s use or occupancy of 
the licensed property. 
 
 Licensee shall not cause any insurance to be canceled nor permit any insurance to lapse, 
All insurance certificates shall include a clause to the effect that the policy shall not be canceled, 
reduced, restricted or otherwise limited until forty-five (45) days after the City has received 
written notice as evidenced by a return receipt of registered or certified mail. 
 
V.  INDEMNIFICATION.  Licensee shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City and 
its officers, agents and employees against all claims, suits, demands, judgments, expenses, 
including attorney's fees, or other liability for personal injury, death, or damage to any person or 
property which arises from or is in any manner caused by the Licensee's construction, 
maintenance or use of the licensed property.  This indemnification provision, however shall not 
apply to any claims, suits, damage, costs, losses, or expenses (i) for which the City shall have 
been compensated by insurance provided under Paragraph IV, above, or (ii) arising solely from 
the negligent or willful acts of the City; provided that for the purposes of the foregoing, the 
City's entering into this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a "negligent or willful act." 
 
VI.  CONDITIONS.  A.  Licensee's Responsibilities.  Licensee will be responsible for any and 
all damage to or relocation of existing facilities.  Further, Licensee shall reimburse the City for 
all costs of replacing or repairing any property of the City, or of others, that is damaged by or on 
behalf of Licensee as a result of activities under this Agreement. 
 
 B. Maintenance.  Licensee shall maintain the licensed property by keeping the area 
free of debris and litter.  Removal of dead or dying plants shall also be handled by Licensee at its 
expense.  Further, the City may require Licensee to take action to maintain the licensed property 
including, but not limited to, the removal of dead or dying vegetation.  Such removal shall be 
completed within thirty (30) days following receipt of a written request from the City.  
 
 C. Removal or Modification. Licensee agrees that removal or modification of any of 
the improvements now existing or to be later placed on the licensed property shall be a 
Licensee's expense.  Provided the City has given prior written approval of the plans and 

 
2 



 
specifications for the improvements, said removal or modification shall be at Licensee's sole 
discretion.   
 
 D. Default.  In the event that Licensee fails to maintain the licensed property or 
otherwise comply with the terms or conditions as set forth herein, the City shall give Licensee 
written notice thereof, by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, to the address set 
forth below.  Licensee shall have thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of such notice to take 
action to remedy the failure complained of, and, if Licensee does not satisfactorily remedy the 
same within the thirty (30) day period, the City may perform the work or contract for the 
completion of the work.  Licensee agrees to pay within thirty (30) days of written demand by the 
City, all reasonable costs expenses incurred by the City in completing the work. 
 

Licensee Address    City Address 
Attn: Richard Maier    Attn: City Manager 
Continental Homes of Texas, LP  City of Leander 
10700 Pecan Park Blvd. 4th Floor,  P. O. Box 319 
Austin, TX 78750    Leander, Texas 78646-0319 
       

 
VII.  COMMENCEMENT AND TERMINATION BY ABANDONMENT.  This Agreement 
shall begin with the effective date and continue thereafter for so long as the licensed property 
shall be used for the purposes set forth herein.  If Licensee abandons the use of all or any part of 
the licensed property for the purposes set forth in this Agreement, this Agreement shall expire 
and terminate, as to the portion or portions abandoned, following thirty (30) days written notice 
by the City to the Licensee or by Licensee to the City.  If all or a part of the licensed property is 
abandoned by Licensee, the City shall thereafter have the same complete title to the licensed 
property so abandoned as though this Agreement had never been made, and shall have the right 
to enter on the licensed property and terminate the rights of Licensee, its successors and assigns 
hereunder, to the abandoned part of the licensed property.  All installations of Licensee on a 
portion of the licensed property that is abandoned shall be deemed property of the City unless 
removed with the consent of the City. 
 
VIII.  TERMINATION.  A. Termination by Licensee.  This Agreement may be terminated by 
Licensee by delivering written notice of termination to the City not later than thirty (30) days 
before the effective date of termination.  If Licensee terminates, then it shall remove all 
installations that it made from the licensed property within the thirty day notice period, at its sole 
cost and expense.  Failure to do so shall constitute a breach of this Agreement. 
 
 B. Termination by City.  Notwithstanding any other term, provision or conditions of 
this Agreement, subject only to prior written notification to Licensee or its successor-in-interest, 
this Agreement is revocable by the City if: 
 

1. The improvements, or a portion of them, interfere with the City's right-of-way; 
 

 
3 



 
2. Use of the licensed property becomes necessary for a public purpose; 

 
3. The improvements, or a portion of them, constitute a danger to the public which 

the City deems not be remediable by alteration, repair or maintenance; 
 

4. Despite thirty (30) days written notice to Licensee, maintenance or alteration 
necessary to alleviate a danger to the public has not been made; or 

 
5. Licensee fails to comply with the terms and conditions of this Agreement 

including, but not limited to the insurance requirements specified herein. 
 
 If Licensee abandons or fails to maintain the licensed property, and the City receives no 
substantive response within thirty (30) days following written notification to Licensee, then the 
City may remove and/or replace all of the improvements and collect from Licensee the City's 
actual expenses incurred in connection therewith. 
 
IX.  EMINENT DOMAIN.  If eminent domain is exerted on the licensed property the City will, 
to the extent permitted by law, cooperate with Licensee to effect the removal of Licensee's 
affected installations and the improvements thereon, at Licensee's sole expense. Licensee shall be 
entitled to retain all monies paid by the condemning authority to Licensee for Licensee's 
installations taken, if any. 
 
X.  INTERPRETATION.  This Agreement shall, in the event of any dispute over its intent, 
meaning or application, shall be interpreted fairly and reasonably, and neither more strongly for 
or against either party. 
 
XI.  APPLICATION OF LAW.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the state of 
Texas.  If the final judgment of a court of competent jurisdiction invalidates any part of this 
Agreement, then the remaining parts shall be enforced, to the extent possible, consistent with the 
intent of the parties as evidenced by this Agreement. 
 
XII.  VENUE.  Venue for all lawsuits concerning this Agreement will be in the Williamson 
County, Texas. 
 
XIII.  COVENANT RUNNING WITH LAND; WAIVER OF DEFAULT.  This Agreement 
and all of the covenants herein shall run with the land; therefore, the conditions set forth herein 
shall inure to and bind each party's successors and assigns.  Either party may waive any default 
of the other at any time by written instrument, without affecting or impairing any right arising 
from any subsequent or other default. 
 
XIV.  ASSIGNMENT.  Licensee shall not assign, sublet or transfer its interest in this 
Agreement without the written consent of the City, which consent shall not be unreasonably 
withheld.  Subject to the assignee's compliance with the insurance requirements set forth herein, 
if any, Licensee shall furnish to the City a copy of any such assignment or transfer of any of 

 
4 



 
Licensee's rights in this Agreement, including the name, address, and contact person of the 
assignee, along with the date of assignment or transfer. 
 
 TERMS AND CONDITIONS ACCEPTED, this the        day of                  , 2015. 
 
     LICENSOR City of Leander 
 

      
By:                                             

       Name:  
       Title:   City Manager 
 
       LICENSEE 
 
       By:                                             
       Name:     Richard Maier                                    
       Title:    Vice President                                     
  
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
     § 
COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this the          day of                  , 20__, by 
____________, City Manager, City of _________, Texas, on behalf of the City. 
 
                                                                
      Notary Public - State of Texas 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
     § 
COUNTY OF _______ § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this the        day of                  , 20__, by 
______________________________ of                                                                          , a 
__________________ partnership (or corporation), on behalf of said partnership (or 
corporation). 
 
                                                                
      Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 
City of Leander 
Attn: City Secretary 
P. O. Box 319 
Leander, Texas 78646-0319 

 
5 









! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

2A

2A2A

3B

3C

2A

2A

3A

2B

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A
2A

2A

2A

2A

3D

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A

2A
2A

2A

4C 3C

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

CR 177

BO
W

EN
 S

T

GRAND LAKE PKWY

LY
LA

 LN

MUZZIE LN

MOLLY LN

ETTA MAY LN

ERICANNA LN

CA
CT

US
 VA

LL
EY

 D
R

RE
PU

BL
IC

 T
RA

ILS
 B

LV
D

MAXWELL DR

PE
CA

N 
VA

LL
EY

 D
R

LEONARDS PASS

MA
RY

 E
LL

A 
DR

ME
RT

ON
 D

R

JOURNEY PKWY

EL
AIN

A L
OOP

JU
LI

A 
LN

BILLY PAT RD

GR
AN

IT
E 

SP
RI

NG
S 

RD

CHIMNEY ROCK RD

JA
KE

 PI
CK

LE
 PA

SS

MARBLE SLAB LN

EDSON CT

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

±0 1,000

Feet

License Agreement - Attachment #2 Location Exhibit - Hazlewood Subdivision
ZONING

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 

SFL
SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 

LC
GC
HC
HI
PUD

PUD Land Use

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Commercial

! ! ! !
! ! ! !

! ! ! !
PUD Mixed Use

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Multi-Family

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Single-Family

! ! ! !

! ! ! !
! ! ! !PUD Townhome

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits
Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for
informational purposes only.  No warranty is made by the City
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official
ordinance for zoning verification.  This data should not be 
constructed as a legal description or survey instrument. No
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the
information herein provided.





AGENDA ITEM # 12 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
November 19, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Zoning Case 15-Z-029:  Hold a public hearing and consider action 

on the rezoning of two lots, for 0.9596 acres more or less, located 
at 1605 and 1607 Tierra Alto, WCAD Parcels R035590 and 
R035591. Currently, the property is zoned SFU/MH-2-B (Single-
Family Urban/Manufactured Home) and the applicant is proposing 
to zone the property TF-2-B (Two-Family), Leander, Williamson, 
County, Texas.  

 
Background: This request is the second step in the rezoning process.   
 
Origination: Applicant: Jose Raul Reyes  
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: See Planning Analysis.  The Planning & Zoning Commission 

unanimously recommended approval of the TF-2-B (Two-Family) 
zoning district at the November 12, 2015 meeting. 

 
Attachments: 1.   Planning Analysis 
 2.   Current Zoning Map 
 3. Proposed Zoning Map 
 4.   Aerial Map 
 5. Location Map 
 6. Notification Map  
 7. Letter of Intent  
 8. Ordinance  
 9. Minutes-Planning & Zoning Commission October 22, 2015 
 
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 11/13/2015 
 



Attachment # 1                 

 
P L A N N I N G A N A L Y S I S  

 
ZONING CASE 15-Z-029 

1605 AND 1607 TIERRA ALTO 
 

 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Owner: Jose Reyes 
 
Current Zoning: SFU/MH-2-B (Single Family Urban / Manufactured Home) 
    
Proposed Zoning: TF-2-B (Two Family) 
  
Size and Location: The property is located at 1605 and 1607 Tierra Alto Street and includes 

approximately 0.9596 acres. 
 
Staff Contact:   Martin Siwek, AICP, GISP   
 Planner      
   
 

ABUTTING ZONING AND LAND USE: 
 
The table below lists the abutting zoning and land uses. 
 

 ZONING LAND USE 

NORTH SFU/MH-2-B Developed Manufactured Home 

EAST LO-1-B/GC-3C Developed Manufactured Home / Vacant 

SOUTH GC-3-C Developed Daycare 

WEST MF-2-B Developed Manufactured Home 
        

 
  

1 
 



Attachment # 1                 

COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE INTENT STATEMENTS 
USE COMPONENT:   

TF – TWO-FAMILY:   
Features:  9,000 sq. ft. lot min.; 1,200 sq. ft. for s.f. home, 900 sq. ft. per unit for 2 - family. 
Intent:  Development of two-family dwelling structures on intermediate sized lots and for other 

uses that are compatible and complimentary to intermediate sized lots and two-family 
dwellings. Such components are generally intended to provide an orderly transition and serve 
as a buffer between larger lot neighborhoods and more intensive uses and to create more 
variety in housing opportunities and in the fabric of the neighborhoods.  The goal is to avoid 
more than ten acres of contiguous land having a two-family component. This component 
should include or be located within six hundred feet of parkland or other recreational open 
space.  To avoid street congestion due to additional on-street parking, access to lots shall be 
provided by a street with a ROW of fifty-six (56) feet or greater and a pavement width of 
thirty-six (36) feet or greater unless lots average at least one hundred feet in width or unless 
garage access is from an alley. 

 
SITE COMPONENT:   

TYPE 2:   
Features:  Accessory buildings greater of 10% of primary building or 120 sq. ft.; accessory 

dwellings for SFR, SFE and SFS; drive-thru service lanes; uses not to exceed 40,000 sq. ft.; 
multi-family provides at least 35% of units with an enclosed garage parking space. 

Intent:   
(1) The Type 2 site component may be utilized with non-residential developments that are adjacent to 

a residential district or other more restrictive district to help reduce potential negative impacts to 
the more restrictive district and to provide for an orderly transition of development intensity.   

(2) The Type 2 site component is intended to be utilized for residential development not meeting the 
intent of a Type 1 site component and not requiring the additional accessory structure or accessory 
dwelling privileges of the Type 3 site component. 

(3) This component is intended to be utilized with the majority of LO and LC use components except 
those that meet the intent of the Type 1 or Type 3 site component or with any use requiring drive-
through service lanes. 

(4) This component is generally not intended to be utilized with HC and HI use components except 
where such component is adjacent to, and not adequately buffered from, residential districts or 
other more restricted districts, and except as requested by the land owner. 

 
ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENT:   

TYPE B:   
Features:  85% masonry 1st floor, 50% all stories; 4 or more architectural features. 
Intent:   
(1) The Type B architectural component is intended to be utilized for the majority of residential 

development except that which is intended as a Type A architectural component.   
(2) Combined with appropriate use and site components, this component is intended to help provide 

for harmonious land use transitions.   
(3) This component may be utilized to raise the building standards and help ensure compatibility for 

non-residential uses adjacent to property that is more restricted.   

2 
 



Attachment # 1                 

(4) This component is intended for the majority of the LO and LC use components except those 
meeting the intent of the Type A or C architectural components. 

 
 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN STATEMENTS: 
 
The following Comprehensive Plan statements may be relevant to this case: 
 Plan for continued growth and development that improves the community’s overall 

quality of life and economic viability. 
 Separate, and/or create transitions, or buffer areas between existing, conflicting or 

incompatible land uses. 
 Strive for a fiscal balance of land uses that will create a positive impact upon the City of 

Leander’s budget and overall tax base. 
 

 

ANALYSIS: 
 
The applicant is requesting to zone the property from SFU/MH-2-B (Single Family Urban / 
Manufactured Home) district to TF-2-B (Two-Family) district.  The property is located at 1605 
and 1607 Tierra Alto Street, which is immediately north of a daycare located at the northwest 
corner of the intersection of Tierra Alto Street and Crystal Falls Pkwy.  Immediately east of this 
property is a vacant lot and a developed manufactured home. North and west of this property are 
developed manufactured homes. 
 
The intent statements of the Two Family Use Component from the Composite Zoning Ordinance 
provides for an orderly transition and serve as a buffer between larger lot neighborhoods and 
more intensive uses.  One of the goals is to avoid more than ten acres of contiguous land having 
a TF Use Component. This use component should be located within six hundred (600’) feet of 
parkland or other recreational space.  To avoid street congestion due to additional on-street 
parking, access to lots shall be provided by a street with a ROW of fifty-six (56’) feet or greater 
and a pavement width of thirty-six (36’) feet or greater unless lots average at least one hundred 
feet in width or unless garage access is from an alley. 
 
The requested Type 2 site component is consistent with the neighboring properties, and is the 
standard site component to be paired with the TF Use Component.   
 
The Type B Architectural Component requires at least 85% of the exterior surface area walls to 
be comprised of masonry for the first floor and 50% masonry is required on each additional story 
thereafter. The Architectural Component would require four design features for street facing 
façades.  This component is intended to provide high building standards and ensure compatibility 
between non-residential and residential uses. 
 

3 
 



Attachment # 1                 

This property is located within a Commercial Corridor.  The purpose of this corridor designation 
is to allow for additional commercial development along corridors already devoted to primarily 
commercial and office uses.  The proposed TF Use Component does not comply with the use 
components that are listed as compatible with the Commercial Corridor.  However, the subject 
property does not have frontage on to Crystal Falls Parkway and the proposal is compatible with 
the Mixed Use Corridor designation.  The Mixed Use Corridor provides for a variety of 
residential uses including small lot single-family, townhome, duplexes, and quadpelxes. 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested TF-2-B zoning district.  Although the property is 
located within the Commercial Corridor, staff has determined that this zoning request meets the 
intent of the corridor designations.  These corridors were established to provide a mixture of 
commercial land uses and high density residential.  Due to the location of this property in 
reference to Crystal Falls Parkway and the proposed density of the development, staff has 
determined that this zoning district is appropriate and meets the intent of the Mixed Use 
Corridor.  The Type 2 Site Component and Type B Architectural Component are consistent with 
the zoning classification of the other properties throughout this neighborhood and would be 
appropriate and compatible.  The TF-2-B zoning district would meet the majority of the intent 
statements as defined in the Composite Zoning Ordinance.  It would serve as a buffer between 
more intensely used property to the south and west, and would provide additional buffering from 
Crystal Falls Pkwy to the south.  

4 
 



1B

2A

2A

LOS VISTA DR

BONITA VERDE DR

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

TIE
RR

A 
AL

TO
 S

T

OLD BAGDAD RD

CA
RT

O 
ST

TY
RO

NE
 DR

SHAMROCK DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-029

Attachment #2
Current Zoning Map
1605 & 1607 Tierra Alto

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



LOS VISTA DR

BONITA VERDE DR

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

TIE
RR

A 
AL

TO
 S

T

SHAMROCK DR

CA
RT

O 
ST

OLD BAGDAD RD
TY

RONE D
R

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-029

Attachment #3
Proposed Zoning
1605 & 1607 Tierra Alto

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

Proposed 
TF-2-B

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



LOS VISTA DR

BONITA VERDE DR

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

SHAMROCK DR

TIE
RR

A A
LT

O 
ST

OLD BAGDAD RD

CA
RT

O 
ST

TY
RO

NE
 DR

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Ë0 200
Feet

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

ZONING CASE 15-Z-029 Attachment #4
Aerial Exhibit - Approximate Boundaries
1605 & 1607 Tierra Alto

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.



2B

2A

1B

1B

2A

2A
2A

S 
W

ES
T 

DR
S BAGDAD RD

SONNY DR

GL
AS

S 
DR

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

WIGWAM

COUNTY GLEN

LOS VISTA DR

DU
BL

IN
 D

R
BONITA VERDE DR

PA
RK

WOOD
 DR

IR
EL

AN
D 

DR

TULA TRL

HI
GH

 C
HA

PA
RR

AL
 D

R

SEDONA

LA
UR

EL
 LN

FOOTHILLS

EM
ER

AL
D 

ISL
E D

R

TYRONE DR

HONEYSUCKLE DR

KILLARNEY DR

IRON HORSE

TAMARAC TRL

MA
SO

N 
CR

EE
K 

BL
VD

LIM
ER

IC
K 

LN

SHEILA DR

DEEPWOODS TRL

GR
EE

NIN
G W

AY

LONDONDERRY DR

SHAMROCK DR

SNOW GOOSE

MOON GLOW
 DR ALSATIAN LN

TIE
RR

A 
AL

TO
 S

T

OLD BAGDAD RD

HERNANDOS LOOP

TIP
PE

RA
RY

 D
R

COTTO
N PA

TC
H TRL

DRAKE CV

CALLE ST

NIGHTSHADE LN

OLD QUARRY RD

APPLE ROCK
REDBUD LN

SE
QU

OI
A 

DR

W
OODDUCK TRL

CA
RT

O 
ST

MULEDEER RUN

DARBEY LN

PEREGRINE WAY

LANTANA LN
GR

EY
BA

CK
 D

R

SALVIA CT

SHAWNEE

ROCKROSE CT

CHICKORY CT

SORREL CT

PINEWOOD CV

SUNFLOWER CT

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-029

Attachment #5
Location Map
1605 & 1607 Tierra Alto

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

Community 
Center

Commercial 
Corridor

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

Mixed Use
Corridor



R468161

R031742 R031746

R438991

R538833

R035604

R035554

R0
35

60
3

R490925

R031771

R0
35

60
5

R102654

R475161

R035515

R035561
R0

35
56

2

R031842

R475
160

R035575
R035582

R0
35

56
0

R0
35

55
8

R0
35

55
9

R0
35

57
6

R0
35

55
6

R0
35

58
1

R0
35

55
7

R035599

R0
35

52
6R035523

R035589 R0
35

52
4

R035590

R0
35

52
5

R0
35

55
2

R035496

R035595 R035495

R0
35

55
1

R0
35

49
0

R4
72

54
2

R3
62

94
1

R035518

R0
35

49
3

R0
35

57
2

R0
35

49
4

R035517

R0
35

58
8

R035600

R035521

R035594

R035522

R0
35

49
1

R035520

R0
35

55
0

R035602 R035498

R035591

R035497
R0

35
56

9

R4
72

54
1

R035592 R0
35

50
2

R0
35

58
5

R0
35

50
0

R035567

R035598

R097505

R0
35

49
9

R035568

R031843

R035597

R035596

R035601

R0
35

57
3

R035519R0
35

57
0

R0
35

50
1

R0
35

58
6

R0
35

58
7

R0
35

57
1

R405795
R0

35
57

4

R097506

R0
35

58
3

R0
35

58
4

R0
83

62
5

R083649 R083650

R0
83

62
4

R0
83

62
3

R097504

R083683

R0
83

62
2R083

627

R083648

R0
83

62
6

R0
83

62
1

R0
83

61
9

R083682 R0
83

698

R0
83

62
0

R083651 R097513

R4
57

56
6

R097515

R0
35

54
9

R468165

R486078

R097521

R097509

R495154

LOS VISTA DR

BONITA VERDE DR

SHAMROCK DR

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

TIE
RR

A A
LT

O 
ST

OLD BAGDAD RD

CA
RT

O 
ST

IRE
LA

ND
 D

R

DU
BL

IN
 D

R

±

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

Public Notification Boundary
Subject Property
WCAD
City Limits

0 200

Feet

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.

CITY MAPCITY MAPË

ZONING CASE 15-Z-029

Attachment #6
Notification Map
1605 & 1607 Tierra Alto



msiwek
Typewritten Text
ATTACHMENT 7



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

 
ORDINANCE NO # 

 
ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 
ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING TWO LOTS FROM SINGLE-
FAMILY URBAN/MANUFACTURED HOME (SFU/MH-2-B) TO TWO-
FAMILY (TF-2-B); MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING 
FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 
 Whereas, the owner of the property described herein after (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  
 
 Whereas, after giving at least ten days written notice to the owners of land within two 
hundred feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the 
proposed rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 
   
 Whereas, after publishing notice of the public hearing at least fifteen days prior to the date 
of such hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances 
of the Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to 
warrant a change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF LEANDER, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and are hereby 
adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Zoning Ordinance.  Ordinance No. 05-018, as amended, the City of 
Leander Composite Zoning Ordinance (the "Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and 
amended by rezoning the Property as set forth in Section 3. 
 
Section 3. Applicability. This ordinance applies to the following tract of land, which is herein 
referred to as the “Property.”  That certain parcels of land being legally described as Lots 1 & 2, 
Block 7 of the High Chaparral Subdivision, located at 1605 & 1607 Tierra Alto Street, Williamson 
County, Texas, being more particularly described in Exhibit “A”; identified by Williamson County 
tax identification numbers R035590 and R035591; more particularly described in document 
number 2015077386 recorded in the Williamson County Official Public Records. 
 
Section 4.  Property Rezoned.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
district for the Property from Single-Family Urban/Manufactured Home (SFU/MH-2-B) to Two-
Family (TF-2-B) as shown in Exhibit “A”.  
 
Section 5. Recording Zoning Change. The City Council directs the City Secretary to record this 
zoning classification on the City’s official zoning map with the official notation as prescribed by 
the City’s zoning ordinance. 
 



Amending Ordinance 05-018-00 

Section 6.  Severability.  Should any section or part of this ordinance be held unconstitutional, 
illegal, or invalid, or the application to any person or circumstance for any reasons thereof 
ineffective or inapplicable, such unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity, or ineffectiveness of such 
section or part shall in no way affect, impair or invalidate the remaining portion or portions thereof; 
but as to such remaining portion or portions, the same shall be and remain in full force and effect 
and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 
Section 7.  Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 551, 
Loc. Gov't. Code. 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading this the 19th day of November, 2015. 
 FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED on this the 3rd day of December, 2015. 
 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



LOS VISTA DR

BONITA VERDE DR

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

TIE
RR

A 
AL

TO
 S

T

SHAMROCK DR

CA
RT

O 
ST

OLD BAGDAD RD
TY

RONE D
R

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

S U
S 1

83

US 183

RM 2243

± 0 200

Feet

ZONING CASE 15-Z-029

Exhibit A
Ordinance Exhibit
1605 & 1607 Tierra Alto

SFR
SFE
SFS
SFU
SFC 
SFL

SFT 
SFU/MH
TF
MF
LO 
LC

GC
HC
HI
PUD

CITY MAPË

Subject Property
City Limits

TF-2-B

This map has been produced by the City of Leander for 
informational purposes only. No warranty is made by the City 
regarding completeness or accuracy, please refer to the official 
ordinance for zoning verification. This data should not be 
construed as a legal description or survey instrument. No 
responsibility is assumed for damages or other liabilities due to 
the accuracy, availability, completeness, use or misuse of the 
information herein provided.





AGENDA ITEM # 13  

 

 

Executive Summary 

November 19, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consideration of Amendment 3 to Task Order HDR-2 with 
HDR Engineering, Inc., for professional services for Improvements of Old 2243 West 
from U.S. Hwy. 183 to Lakeline Boulevard 
 
Background:   Amendment 3 to Task Order HDR-2, attached herein, is for Construction 
Phase Services including the following: 
 

a. Preconstruction Meeting(s) Coordination 
b. Periodic job site visits 
c. Attendance at bi-weekly construction progress meetings 
d. Responses to Contractor Requests for Information (RFI), submittals, 

modification requests, shop drawings, quality control reports, change orders, 
and other submittals as required by the Construction Documents (CD) 

e. Conduct Substantial Completion and Final Completion Walk-through 
 
With this proposed Amendment 3, the total authorized compensation increases by 
$155,459 from $1,520,718.00 to 1,676,177.00. 
 
Task Order History:  Task Order HDR-2 was approved by the City Council on May 16, 
2013, in the amount of $1,184,748.90 for professional services for roadway 
improvements for Old 2243 West from U.S. Hwy. 183 to Lakeline Boulevard. The 
approved compensation consisted of a lump sum amount of $776,348.90 for design, 
advertising, and bidding services along with compensation for Additional Services at the 
option of the City for NEPA compliance activities not to exceed $240,000.00; subsurface 
utilities location activities not to exceed $50,000.00; R.O.W. acquisition related activities 
not to exceed $88,400.00; and Phase One Environmental Assessment(s) for R.O.W. 
acquisition(s) not to exceed $30,000.00 on a time and materials basis.  
 
Amendment 1 to Task Order HDR-2 was approved by the City Council on November 20, 
2014, which approved certain scope items of additional services. Scope of work included 
in this revision were: NEPA compliance activities not required for a revised lump sum 
amount $0.00; subsurface utilities location activities for a revised lump sum amount of 
$24,000.00; R.O.W. (and easement) acquisition related activities for a revised lump sum 
amount of $204,020.00; and Phase One Environmental Assessment(s) for R.O.W. (and 
easement) acquisitions for a revised lump sum amount of $26,135.00. New scope of work 
items were: PEC (Distribution) Underground Relocation Coordination and Design for a 



 

lump sum amount of $124,024.00; Design and Detail Additional Water Quality Facility 
at new Outfall Location for a lump sum amount of $45,400.00; and Waterline Relocation 
Design and Details at PEC Transmission Poles for a lump sum amount of $17,220.00. 
With Amendment1, the authorized compensation increased by $33,399.00 from 
$1,184,748.90 to $1,218,148.00. 
 
Amendment 2 was approved by the City Council on June 4, 2015 as the design effort had 
proceeded and landowner coordination for the acquisition of the proposed right of way 
had occurred, landowners requested changes to the proposed design due to the impacts to 
their properties for their current use and for future development or have requested 
improvements to their property in lieu of right of way acquisition costs. In addition, as 
the subsurface utility location scope had been completed additional utility impacts have 
been discovered based on these findings. Due to these changes many of the scopes of 
work required updating of the scope of work and associated compensation. Scope of 
work revisions are: R.O.W. (and easement) acquisition related activities for a lump sum 
amount of $44,500.00; additional drainage, water quality and roadway design for a lump 
sum amount of $133,320.00; water and waste waterline relocation design for a lump sum 
amount of $124,750.00. With Amendment 2, the authorized compensation increased by 
$302,570.00 from $1,218,148.00 to $1,520,718.00. – End of Task Order History 
 
 
Origination:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 
Financial Consideration:  $155,459 from CIP Reserve Funds (40-04-8385) for an 
increase in total contract amount to $1,676,177.00 
 
Recommendation:  Staff requests authorization of the City Manager to negotiate and 
execute Amendment 3 to Task Order HDR-2.   
 
Attachments:  Amendment 3 to Task Order HDR-2 and supporting documentation 

 
Prepared by:  Wayne S. Watts, P.E., CFM, City Engineer 
 



 
 

1 
 

AMENDMENT-3 TO TASK ORDER HDR-2 
 

 OLD FM 2243 - DESIGN SERVICES 
(US 183 TO LAKELINE BLVD.) 

 
ADDITIONAL SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE ENGINEER 
 
GENERAL OVERVIEW OF ADDITONAL SERVICES 

The scope of services for this project shall be expanded to included additional services which 
will include: 

1. Construction Phase Services 
a. Preconstruction meeting 
b. Periodic job site visits 
c. Attendance at bi-weekly construction progress meetings 
d. Responses to Contractor Requests for Information (RFI), submittals, modification 

requests, shop drawings, quality control reports, change orders, and other 
submittals as required by the Construction Documents (CD). 

e. Conduct Substantial Completion and Final Completion walk-through. 
Add the following scope of work to Task Order HDR-2: 

1) CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 
The Engineer will be available as directed by the City Project Manager for the 
administration of the Project Construction as follows: 
1. The Engineer will attend one (1) preconstruction meeting with City Project 

Manager, City inspector(s), Contractor, and Sub-Contractors.  The Engineer will 
distribute minutes of the preconstruction meeting.  The City Project Manager 
and/or City Project Inspector will prepare meeting agenda and coordinate and 
conduct preconstruction meeting. 

2. The Engineer will make up to 45 periodic visits to the job site.   The Engineer 
will issue a brief Site Visit memorandum to document he Engineer’s site 
observations and findings. The Engineer anticipates each site visit will last 
about two (2) hours. 

3. The Engineer will attend bi-weekly construction progress meetings at the 
project site for the duration of the 20 month construction schedule. It is 
anticipated that the Engineer will attend forty five (45) progress meetings. The 
attendance of the construction progress meetings will be concurrent with the site 
visits of Task 2 above.  The Engineer anticipates each construction meeting will 
last about three (3) hours, either prior to or after the meeting the Engineer will 
proceed with Site Visit.  The City Project Manager and/or City Project Inspector 
will prepare meeting agenda and coordinate and conduct construction progress 
meetings. 



Task Order HDR-1  Old FM 2243 - Design Services 

2 
 

4. The Engineer will review and address Contractor Requests for Information 
(RFI), submittals, modification requests, shop drawings, quality control reports, 
change orders, and other submittals as required by the Construction Documents 
(CD).  The Engineer will interpret the intent of the designs and specifications 
prepared by the Engineer.  The Engineer will make revisions to construction 
drawings due to field condition changes and will provide the City with corrected 
drawings for City distribution to Contractor.  The Engineer will assist City in 
preparation of documentation for contract modifications required to implement 
changes in the design of the Project; will receive and evaluate notices of 
construction contractor claims and make recommendations to the City on the 
merit and value of the claim on the basis of the information submitted by 
Contractor on behalf of the City if appropriate. The Engineer will be available 
upon request and at the direction of the City up to the anticipated hours. The 
Engineer will notify the City upon expenditure of 90% of the anticipated hours. 
Hours required or requested by the City above the budgeted amount will be 
conducted under a separate agreement. 

5. The Engineer will conduct in company with City Project Manager, City 
inspector(s) and Contractor one (1) site visit review of the construction of the 
improvements for conformance with the Substantial Completion requirements 
of the Construction Documents; will prepare a list of improvements Substantial 
Completion deficiencies to be corrected by Contractor; will conduct one (1) 
follow-up site visit review of the improvements Final Completion of the project; 
and will issue the Engineer’s Letter of Concurrence of Final Completion of the 
improvements upon Contractor final completion in accordance with the 
Construction Documents. 

6. The Engineer will assist the City with coordination and scheduling of utility 
company relocation efforts during construction. The Engineer will schedule and 
conduct a pre-activity meeting with the utility companies to be relocated into 
the duct bank.  

Work for Construction Phase Services will be paid for on an hourly basis based on the following 
schedule of rates. Direct expenses will be paid for as outlined under the Exhibit A – Work 
breakdown contained herein. 
 
Project Manager  $230.00/hr 
Sr. Const Specialist  $185.00/hr 
Sr. Engineer   $195.00/hr 
Design Engineer  $145.00/hr 
EIT    $115.00/hr 
Utility Design Coordinator $105.00/hr 
CAD Tech   $225.00/hr 
Admin/Clerical  $  85.00/hr 
 



Task Order HDR-1  Old FM 2243 - Design Services 

3 
 

Amendment-3 to Task Order HDR-1 executed to be effective as of the ______ day of 
______________, 2013. 
 
City of Leander:      HDR Engineering, Inc.: 
 
By: ___________________________   By: _________________________ 
 
Kent Cagle, City Manager     Name: Mark Borenstein, PE 
        Title:  Vice President 



HDR ENGINEERING, INC. EXHIBIT A
CITY OF LEANDER

OLD RM 2243

Design Criteria:  Major Arterial
MAU‐5 LANES (66 Ft  LOG‐LOG)

UTILITY ARCH/ CULTURAL
TASK TASK DESCRIPTION PROJ. SR. Const SR. SR. ENV. JR. ENV. GIS DESIGN EIT DESIGN CADD HISTORIAN/ CREW CLERICAL/ TOTAL
NO. 1 MGR. Spec. ENGR. SCIENTIST SCIENTIST TECH. ENGR. COORD TECH. PI SPECIALIST CHIEF STENO
COST COMPONENT, HOURS

4) Construction Phase Services
Attend Preconstruction Meeting 4 4 8
Periodic Site Visits (45) 50 20 50 120
Attend bi‐weekly construction progress meetings (45) 80 30 110
Responses to Contractor Requests for Information (RFI), submittals, modification requests, 
shop drawings, quality control reports, change orders, and other submittals as required by 
the Construction Documents (CD).

80 80 80 160 80 80 560

Conduct Substantial Completion and Final Completion  8 8 8 4 28
Assist City with Utility coordination and scheduling of relocations 40 40 80 40 200

SUBTOTAL CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES SERVICES 222 54 128 0 0 0 128 240 0 80 0 0 174 1026

TOTAL HDR HOURS 222 54 128 0 0 0 128 240 0 80 0 0 174 1026

COST COMPONENT, DOLLARS $225.00 $185.00 $195.00 $145.00 $115.00 $125.00 $145.00 $115.00 $105.00 $95.00 $85.00 $62.00 $85.00

Attend Preconstruction Meeting $900 $740 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,640
Periodic Site Visits (45) $11,250 $3,700 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,250 $19,200
Attend bi‐weekly construction progress meetings (45) $18,000 $5,550 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $23,550
Responses to Contractor Requests for Information (RFI), submittals, modification requests, 
shop drawings, quality control reports, change orders, and other submittals as required by 
the Construction Documents (CD).

$18,000 $0 $15,600 $0 $0 $0 $11,600 $18,400 $0 $7,600 $0 $0 $6,800 $78,000

Conduct Substantial Completion and Final Completion  $1,800 $0 $1,560 $0 $0 $0 $1,160 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $340 $4,860
Assist City with Utility coordination and scheduling of relocations $0 $0 $7,800 $0 $0 $0 $5,800 $9,200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $3,400 $26,200

TOTAL HDR LABOR FEE $49,950 $9,990 $24,960 $0 $0 $0 $18,560 $27,600 $0 $7,600 $0 $0 $14,790 $153,450

COST COMPONENT SUBCONSULTANTS

SUB INLAND GEODETICS, LP $0
SUB TERRACON $0
SUB GRAM $0
SUB LUCK DESIGN TEAM (NICHOLSON INNOVATIONS) $0

SUBTOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS $0

COST COMPONENT DIRECT EXPENSES

EXP MILEAGE $0.56 MILE 2025 $1,134
EXP COPIES $0.25 EA 2500 $625
EXP EDR $725.00 EA $0
EXP OVERNIGHT DELIVERIES $25.00 EA 10 $250
EXP FIELD SUPPLIES, RENTAL EQUIPMENT $807.00 DAY $0
EXP SUE TEST HOLES $2,000.00 EA $0

TOTAL DIRECT EXPENSES $2,009

TOTAL HDR LABOR FEE, SUBCONSULTANTS, AND EXPENSES $155,459

HOURLY RATES INCLUDING OVERHEAD

Project Description:  Construction Administration for Old FM 2243 from Lakeline Blvd. to US 
183

Project Length: 2.8 miles   14,800 LF



AGENDA ITEM # 14 
 

 

Executive Summary 

November 19, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Consideration of Award of Right-of-Way (ROW) Mowing 
Contract  
 
 Background:  Five bids were received and opened on November 10, 2015, for the ROW 
Mowing Contract for street rights-of-way, drainage areas, and easements.  Abescape 
Landscaping, LLC is the lowest, qualified bidder.  The second lowest bidder was Rios 
Tree Service Inc.  Last year’s ROW mowing contract was $143,054.81.  This year’s 
contract includes more frequent mowing schedules, especially along arterial roads, 
several new areas such as Municipal Drive, and the landscaped areas around the Travisso 
Water Reclamation Plant.   The recommendation also includes mowing Ronald Reagan 
Blvd, the alternate bid item, four times-a-year. The contract agreement is for a twelve 
month period, with an option to renew the agreement for two more twelve month periods. 
 
Origination:  Patrick A. Womack, P.E. Public Works Director 
 
Financial Consideration:  $193,923.92 from the Public Works General Fund, Contract 
Labor and Contract Services, GL# 01-21-5612  
 
Recommendation:   Staff requests Council approve the contract agreement for the 
FY2015-2016 ROW Mowing and Maintenance Services in the amount of $193,923.92 
with Abescape Landscaping, LLC and authorize the City Manager to sign the contract.   
 
Attachments:   Bid Tabulation Form, Mowing Schedule, and Contract Agreement 

 
Prepared by:  Patrick A. Womack, P.E. Public Works Director 



Bid Info: City of Leander

Right of Way Mowing

Solicitation No. IFB#S16-008

Opening: 11/10/2015

Max 
Points

Abescape Landscaping

Rios Tree Service
Landscape Ranch 

Services

Kin Performance 
Contractors Maldonado Nursery and 

Landscape

65 65 64 50 45 42

$41,553.20 $41,553.20 $57,135.65 $61,031.26 $67,523.95

$35,867.16 $34,159.20 $45,260.94 $49,103.85 $51,238.80

$96,140.00 $101,200.00 $126,500.00 $142,312.50 $151,800.00

$2,344.00 $1,031.36 $1,200.00 $1,318.50 $1,465.00

$175,904 $177,944 $230,097 $253,766 $272,028
$54,058.00 $55,444.80 $58,217.04 $86,632.50 $86,632.50

15 15 14

References checked References checked
Previous City of Leander 

Vendor; Additional references 
not checked at this time

Previous City of Leander 
Vendor; Additional references 

not checked at this time

References not checked at 
this time

20 20 20 NA NA NA

Acceptable trucks, signage 
on trucks, equipment and 

staff levels per spec.

Acceptable trucks, signage 
on trucks, equipment and 

staff levels per spec.
Not evaluated Not evaluated Not evaluated

TOTAL: 100 100 98 NA NA NA
AWARD

Reputation of Bidder 

Quality of Goods and Services Meet City's Needs

References 

Respondent is qualified and meets all solicitation requirements.  Regularly 
engaged in this type of business, truck appearance and adequate number of 
supervisors and full time employees.

Right of Way Mowing - Schedule A

Right of Way Mowing - Schedule B

Right of Way Mowing - Schedule C

Right of Way Mowing - Schedule D

Alternate Bid Item

EVALUATION CRITERIA

Price and Score



BID PROPOSAL ATTACHMENT D

FY 2015-2016 RIGHT-OF-WAY MOWING - SCHEDULE A

Map Sheet Sched. Ref # Location

Approx. 

Area 

(Acres) January February March April May June July August September October November December
Total 

Frequencies Annual Acres

E5,E6,E7
A 105

Crystal Falls Parkway (Hwy 183 to Reagan 

Blvd.) 22.85 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 2 1 1 16 365.60

C6,D6 A 106 Mel Mathis (2243 to SGP) 4.11 1 1 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 1 14 57.54

D5,D6,D7 A 107 Hero Way (US 183 to Reagan) 9.29 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 2 1 1 16 148.64

F7,F8 A 108
Journey Parkway (formerly CR179, from 

Reagan to CR175)
8.68 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 2 1 1 16 138.88

F8 A 109 CR175 - South (City Limits) 3.82 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 2 1 1 16 61.12

E4,E5,F5 A 111 Lakeline Blvd (Mason Ranch to 2243) 10.04 1 2 2 1 2 2 1 1 1 1 14 140.56

B4,B5 A 112 Collaborative Way 2.81 1 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 14 39.34

F5 A 113 Odor Control Station #12 1609 Lions Den 0.18 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 2 1 1 16 2.88

D5 A 119
Municipal Drive ROW (Northern-Public 

Works) 1.17 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 2 1 1 16 18.67

F3 A 127
Travisso - Durango Hills ROW (South Side,  

front of WRP & Pond Walls) 1.15 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 2 1 1 16 18.40

F3 A 128 Travisso Pond Interior incl RWPS 1.37 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 2 1 1 16 21.92

F3 A 129 Durango Hills ROW (north side) 1.58 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 2 1 1 16 25.28

Schedule A Subtotal: 186 1,038.83

FY 2015-2016 RIGHT-OF-WAY MOWING - SCHEDULE B

Map Sheet Sched. Ref # Location

Approx. 

Area 

(Acres) January February March April May June July August September October November December
Total 

Frequencies Annual Acres

3 Deleted

4 Deleted

C5 B 6 Coulee Dr & Southbrook @ Plain Elem 0.30 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 10 3.00

F5 B 7 CG - Bagdad to Wicklow 1.27 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 10 12.70

F5,F6 B 8 East CG Abandoned ROW 0.36 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 10 3.60

E7 B 9 CR 177 - Reagan to Valley View Dr 1.74 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 10 17.40

D6,D7 B 11 CR270 & Winding Oak (500' from Hero) 0.74 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 10 7.40

D6,E6 B 12 Horizon Park - RM 2243 to E Crystal Falls 5.81 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 11 63.91

E6 B 20 Leander Dr - E Crystal Falls to dead end 3.07 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 10 30.70

C5,C6 B 25 San Gabriel Pkw - Bagdad to CR 270 37.94 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 10 379.40

F5 B 37 B-CF - Pond&/Channel 1900 Wildfire 1.41 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 10 14.10

F5 B 38 B-CF Co Glen GST 1.59 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 10 15.90

F5 B 39 B-CF - Sedona Dr 1.33 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 10 13.30

F5 B 47 LR - Kettering @ Bagdad 4.54 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 10 45.40

F5 B 48 LR - S end Tumbling River 2.19 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 10 21.90

D5 B 56 MC N Backlot Channel Em Rose N 0.49 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 10 4.90

E5 B 57 MC  N Backlot Channel Em Rose Bent 0.61 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 10 6.10

D5 B 72 Old Town Village, Lots 11, 12, Pond 1.85 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 10 18.50

F5 B 93 Boulders - Bagdad Pond 3.18 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 10 31.80

D5,D6,D7 B 114

RM 2243 (Hwy 183 to M. Mathis Schedule 

between TXDOT mowing) 1.44 1 1 1 1 1 1 6 8.64

D6 B
115

Joule 10200 RM2243 Frontage & along 

driveway 0.35 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 8 2.80

D6 B 118 Joule Interior 1.50 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 8 12.00

D5 B 120 701 Municipal (Big Lot) 3.48 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 8 27.84

D5 B 121 609 Municipal (Small Lot) 1.75 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 8 14.00

F5 B
122

Hernandos Loop (South and East Sides & 

125ft on CG) 0.67 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 15 10.05

F5 B 123 Hernandos Loop Backlot Alley 0.58 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 15 8.70

F5 B
124

Emerald Isle Drainage Esmt (Weedeater 

Only) 0.63 1 1 2 2 1 2 1 1 1 12 7.56

F5 B 125 2103 Emerald Isle Esmt (Weedeater Only) 0.70 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 15 10.50

E5 B 126 Powell & Horseshoe ROW 1.75 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 15 26.25

D5 B 131 Broade Way 0.86 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 15 12.90

F5 B 132 County Glen (north side) 0.08 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 15 1.18

F5 B
133

County Glen (County Glen south side - both 

sides of Hernados 0.27 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 15 3.99

D5 B 134 W. Broade St (South of 2243) 0.88 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 15 13.15

D5 B 135 Abandoned ROW (W. Broade to 2243) 0.55 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 8 4.41

Schedule B Subtotal: 349 853.98

KEY: BR = Benbrook Ranch   B-CF = Boulders-Crystal Falls   CG = County Glen   CS/H = Cold Springs/Hazlewood   HP = Horizon Park   LR = Lakeline Ranch 

         OR = Oak Ridge   MC = Mason Creek   NC = North Creek   RS = Ridgewood South   VR = Vista Ridge   WM = Westview Meadows

ATTACHMENT D

SHEET 1 OF 4

P:\Public Works Projects\Mowing 2015-2016\Mowing Schedule FY2015-2016 10-28-2015

 As of: 11/12/2015

mailto:Boulders@Crystal%20Falls%20-%20Pond/Back%20Channel


FY 2015-2016 RIGHT-OF-WAY MOWING - SCHEDULE C ATTACHMENT D

Map Sheet Sched. Ref # Location

Approx. 

Area 

(Acres) January February March April May June July August September October November December
Total 

Frequencies Annual Acres

B5 C 1 Amanda's Way - CR 276 to Dead End 0.45 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 4.05

A4-B4 &     

C5-F5 C 2 Bagdad Rd - S City Limit to Spivey 32.41 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 2 1 16 518.57

B5,C5 C 13 CR 276 - Amanda's Way to US 183 1.58 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 14.22

B3,B4 C 14 CR 280 - Bagdad to Mesa 6.16 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 55.44

C5 C 17 Heritage Grove - US 183 to Halsey 2.88 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 25.92

18 Deleted

A7,B7 C 19 Kauffman Loop - Reagan 500' west 1.16 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 10.44

F5 21 City Entry Monument Hwy 183 by RR 0.29 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 2.61

C3 & D3-D5 C 23 Old FM 2243 W - HEB to W City Limits 30.20 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 2 1 16 483.20

E5,E6 C 26 South side Sonny Dr 183 to Leander Dr 0.50 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 2 1 16 8.00

E5 C 27 West Dr at Mason Cr Sidewalk at Creek 4.90 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 44.10

C5 C 28 BR Halsey Dr Pond 1 8.82 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 79.38

C5 C 30 BR NE Channel - McCallum to SGP 1.15 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 10.35

C5 C 31 BR N Washburn Channel 1.63 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 14.67

C5 C 32 BR N SE Channel 2.01 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 18.09

C5 C 33 BR N Halsey Channel- North Half 0.41 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 3.69

C5 C 34 BR N Halsey Channel - South Half 0.50 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 4.50

C5 C 35 BR Middlebrook Pond 1.99 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 17.91

D5 C 36 BR Robles Court Pond 0.61 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 5.49

F5 C 40 B-CF Star Pass Pond 0.26 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 2.34

F7 C 41 CS/H Base of Dam, Access Esmt & Pond 7.04 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 63.36

D5 C 42 E Willis Alley Ditch 0.34 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 3.06

F6 C 43 HP Sec, Lot 15 10.09 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 10 100.90

E6,F6 C 44 HP Sec 2, Lot 31 - CF to Mockingbird 3.40 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 10 34.00

F5 C 45 LR - 2640 Lakeline 1.14 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 10 11.40

E5 C 49 Magnolia Abandoned Ponds 2.49 Maintained by HOA

E5 C 50 MC - 1810 Mason Cr 2.14 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 10 21.40

E5 C 51 MC Cr - 1501 Bagdad 2.86 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 10 28.60

E5 C 52 MC - E of Moonglow 0.44 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 10 4.41

E5 C 53 Woods @ MC - E of Moonglow Lot 18 0.86 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 10 8.64

E5 C 54 Woods @ MC - E of Moonglow Lot 11 0.76 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 10 7.56

E5,F5 C 55 MC Laurel-Parkwood Backlot 0.50 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 10 5.00

D5 C 58 MC Backlot Channel Northern-Bentwood N 0.36 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 10 3.60

E5 C 59 MC Backlot Channel Northern-Bentwood S 0.51 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 10 5.10

E5 C 60 MC Tamarac Tr Channel 4.91 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 10 49.10

E5 C 61 MC Sect 1, Blk Q, Lot 1 0.44 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 10 4.40

E5 C 62 MC Sec 1 Blk R, Lot 1 0.62 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 10 6.20

Schedule C Subtotal: 350 1,679.70

KEY: BR = Benbrook Ranch   B-CF = Boulders-Crystal Falls   CG = County Glen   CS/H = Cold Springs/Hazlewood   HP = Horizon Park   LR = Lakeline Ranch 

         OR = Oak Ridge   MC = Mason Creek   NC = North Creek   RS = Ridgewood South   VR = Vista Ridge   WM = Westview Meadows

ATTACHMENT D

SHEET 2 OF 4

P:\Public Works Projects\Mowing 2015-2016\Mowing Schedule FY2015-2016 10-28-2015

 As of: 11/12/2015



FY 2015-2016 RIGHT-OF-WAY MOWING - SCHEDULE C - Continued ATTACHMENT D

Map Sheet Sched. Ref # Location

Approx. 

Area 

(Acres) January February March April May June July August September October November December
Total 

Frequencies Annual Acres

F6 C 63 Mockingbird Channel 1.77 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 15.93

D5 C 64 NC Sparkling Brook Sec 3a, Blk 1, Lot 5 0.93 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 8.37

D5 C 65 NC Waterfall/Rio Bravo Pond 2.46 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 22.14

D4,D5 C 66 NC Sec 1 Det Pond-Riverway to Deercreek 1.64 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 14.76

D4 c 67 NC Sec 2 Pond - Deercreek to Sunnybrook 1.20 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 10.80

D4 C 68 NC Sec 2 Open Space - W of Sunnbybook 0.06 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 0.54

D4 C 69 NC Sec 3D @ Devine Lake Park Entrance 5.35 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 48.15

D4,D5 C 70 NC Sec 3F @ Devine Lake Park Entrance 2.20 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 19.80

D5 C 71 NC Estates Caballero/San Vicente Pond 4.90 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 44.10

E6,F6 C 73 Pleasant Hill Elementary Electric Esmt 0.50 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 4.50

E5 C 74 Richter Chanel - Leander Hts 1.98 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 17.82

E5 C 75 Richter Chanel - Leander Hts (continued) 0.60 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 5.40

E6,F6 C 76 RS Downridge/Mockingbird Pond 0.60 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 5.40

F6 C 77 RS Vintage Channel N 1.28 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 11.52

F6 C 78 RS Vintage Channel S 0.89 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 8.01

F6 C 79 RS Vintage Pond 0.57 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 5.13

E6 C 80 RS Channel @ ECFP 0.43 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 3.87

E6,F6 C 81 RS Rutherford/St Helena Channel 1.37 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 12.33

E6 C 82 RS Rutherford/St Helena Ponds 1.50 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 13.50

F6 C 83 RS Calistoga Channels & Ponds 4.06 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 36.54

F6 C 84 RS Calistoga Abandoned LS11 0.17 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 1.53

E6 C 85 RS Vintage Backlot Channel 0.98 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 8.82

E6 C 86 RS Vintage Backlot Channel (Cont) 0.10 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 0.90

D4 C 87 VR Baranco Way Pond & Irr. Field 5.95 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 53.55

D5,E5 C 88 VR Bledsoe Ponds 4.96 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 44.64

D5 C 89 WM Pond Phase 1 3.21 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 28.92

D5 C 90 WM Pond Phase 2 3.13 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 28.17

E5 C 91 WM - Morgan Dr Pond & Channel 3.47 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 31.23

D4,D5 C 92 Westwood Candleight Dr Pond 9.67 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 87.03

E5 C 94 MC (1810 Mason Cr.) 0.98 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 8.82

E5 C 95 MC (1810 Mason Cr.) 0.83 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 7.47

E6 C 96 OR Detention Pond & Channel 5.98 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 53.82

E5 C 98 MC Greening Way Channel at Primrose 1.17 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 10.53

100 Deleted

101 Deleted

C 102 Deleted

D7,D8,E8 C 104

CR175 - RM 2243 to 1 mile south at future 

City Limits 2.86 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 25.74

F2 C 110

Nameless Road (2,400 lf, from 1431 to 

southwest corner of PEC substation, east 

side only)

1.60 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 14.40

B6 & C6 C
115 & 

116

CR270 (San Gab Pkwy to 1800 ft north & 

CR270 (1011 Davenport to 213 Beningfield)
3.68 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 9 33.12

F3 C 130
Travisso Future Pond Site (Mow after 

vegetation is established) 6.59 1 1 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 1 14

92.26

D5 C 136
W Broade St. (north of 2243 to North Park 

Meadows entrance)
0.67

1 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 2 1 16

10.74

Schedule C Subtotal: 354 2,530.00

KEY: BR = Benbrook Ranch   B-CF = Boulders-Crystal Falls   CG = County Glen   CS/H = Cold Springs/Hazlewood   HP = Horizon Park   LR = Lakeline Ranch 

         OR = Oak Ridge   MC = Mason Creek   NC = North Creek   RS = Ridgewood South   VR = Vista Ridge   WM = Westview Meadows

ATTACHMENT D

SHEET 3 OF 4

P:\Public Works Projects\Mowing 2015-2016\Mowing Schedule FY2015-2016 10-28-2015

 As of: 11/12/2015



FY 2015-2016 RIGHT-OF-WAY MOWING - SCHEDULE D (LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE) ATTACHMENT D

Map Sheet Sched. Ref # Location

Approx. 

Area 

(Acres) January February March April May June July August September October November December
Total 

Frequencies Annual Acres

F5 D 117 Crystal Falls Pump Station 1404 Wigwam 0.12 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 2 1 1 16 1.92

F5 D 21
City Entry Monument Hwy 183 by RR 

(25'X25' See Sch C for mowing) 0.02 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 2 1 1 16 0.24

F3 D 127

Travisso - Durango Hills ROW (South Side,  

front of WRP & Pond Walls, see Sch. A for 

mowing.) 1.15 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 2 1 1 16 18.4

F5 D 113
Odor Control Station #12 1609 Lions Den 

(See Sch. A for mowing.) 0.18 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 2 1 1 16 2.88

Schedule D Subtotal: 64 23.44

ALTERNATE BID ITEM #1  

Map Sheet Sched. Ref # Location

Approx. 

Area 

(Acres) January February March April May June July August September October November December
Total 

Frequencies Annual Acres

A-F7 C 24

Reagan Blvd - Hwy 29 to S City Limits 

includes around WQ & Detention Ponds at 

South end and Booster Station at Reagan's 

Overlook (mow according to SCHEDULE C)

115.51 1 1 1 1 4 462.04

ATTACHMENT D

SHEET 4 OF 4

P:\Public Works Projects\Mowing 2015-2016\Mowing Schedule FY2015-2016 10-28-2015

 As of: 11/12/2015



 

 
 

STANDARD CONTRACT AGREEMENT FOR RIGHT-OF-WAY 
MOWING AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES 

 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 

COUNTY OF WILLIAMSON   § KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS: 

This Standard Contract Agreement For Right-Of-Way Mowing and Maintenance Services (hereinafter referred to as 
the “Agreement”) is made and entered into on  this ___ day of ____________ 2014, by and between the City of 
Leander, Texas, a home-rule city and municipal corporation with principal offices located at 200 W. Willis 
Street, Leander, Williamson and Travis Counties, Texas, 78641 (hereinafter referred to as the “City”), and 
Abescape Landscaping, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, with principal offices located at with principal 
offices located at 1751 Glen Campbell Avenue, El Paso, Texas 79936 (hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”). 

1. Agreement. That, for and in consideration of the mutual terms, conditions and covenants of this Agreement 
and the accompanying documents between City and Contractor and for and in consideration of payments as set 
forth therein, Contractor hereby agrees to commence and perform landscape maintenance services, consisting of 
furnishing all the materials, supplies, machinery, equipment, tools, superintendence, labor, insurance, and other 
accessories and services necessary to perform the landscape maintenance services according to the schedules and 
frequencies detailed in the attachments hereto and the City’s direction at the locations identified in the Contract 
documents, in accordance with Invitation & Instructions to Bidders, the Notices to Bidders, the General 
Conditions, the completed Proposal Form and attachments, the List of Machinery & Equipment, the Appendices, 
the Insurance Certificates, and any addenda thereto, all of which are made a part hereof and collectively evidence 
and constitute the entire contract (the “Contract Documents.”). The Contractor shall satisfactorily perform all work 
as specified or indicated in the Contract Documents. 

2. Consideration. The City agrees to pay Contractor from available funds for satisfactory performance of 
this Agreement, the price or prices as shown in the Contract Documents, i.e. Bid Proposal Mowing of Rights-of-
Way, Street Medians, Drainage Channels, Retention/Detention Ponds and other Project Areas (Schedules A, B, C, 
D Areas, and Reagan Blvd. ) submitted by the Contractor that is approved by the City, attached and incorporated 
herein, in the amount of $193,923.92 per year, for mowing services provided to the Project Area properties and 
frequencies specified in Schedules A, B, C & D, subject to proper additions and deductions as provided in the 
Contract Documents. The City agrees to make payments on account thereof as provided therein. Lack of funds 
shall render this Agreement null and void to the extent funds are not available.  Deviations from the Contract 
Documents and frequencies specified in Schedules A, B, C or D shall require prior written approval by the City. 
No change orders shall be made, nor will bills for changes, alterations, modifications, deviations, and extra work 
orders be recognized or paid for except upon the written order from authorized personnel of the City.  Approved 
change orders shall not exceed the the original contract price by more than twenty-five percent (25%). Written 
change orders that do not exceed twenty-five percent (25%) of the original contract amount may be made or 
approved by the City Manager or his delegate if the total of the change order(s), in the aggregate, is less than Fifty 
Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00).  Any requests by the Contractor resulting in a change to the contract amount shall 
be made prior to the beginning of the work covered by the proposed change or the right to payment for such extra 
work may be waived. 

3. Independent Contractor. Contractor expressly agrees that Contractor, during the term of this Agreement, is 
not and shall not be an agent or employee of the City, but is and independent contractor, and no withholding of 
Social Security or federal income Tax or other deductions shall be made from the sums agreed to be paid to the 
Contractor in the pricing schedule. 

4. Non-Discrimination Policy. Contractor shall not discriminate against any person because of race, sex, age, 
creed, color, religion or national origin. 

5. Indemnification. Contractor will indemnify and save harmless the City, its officers, agents, servants and 
employees from and against any and all suits, actions, legal proceedings, claims, demands, damages, injuries, costs, 
expenses, and attorneys’ fees, arising out of a willful or negligent act or omission of the Contractor, its officers, 
agents, servants and employees; provided, however, that this Indemnity shall not apply to any claims, demands, 
damages, costs, expenses and attorneys’ fees arising out of the award of this Agreement based upon any willful or 
negligent act or omission of the City, its officer, agents, servants and employees. 

6. Notice. Any notice required or desired to be given under this Agreement shall be in writing with copies directed 
as indicated and shall be personally delivered or given by mail. Any notice given shall be deemed to have been 
given when hand delivered or, if mailed, as of seventy-two hours from the time when notice was deposited in the 
United States mails (certified or registered, return receipt requested, postage prepaid), addressed to the party to be 
served with a copy as indicated herein. Either party hereto may change its address for purposes of notice by giving 
notice of such change of address to the other party. 

7. Waiver. Waiver of any breach of this Agreement shall not constitute waiver of any subsequent breach. 
 
8. No Joint Venture. This Agreement shall not be construed to establish a partnership, joint venture, agency, or 
joint enterprise, express or implied, nor any employer-employee or borrowed servant relationship by and among 
the parties hereto. Nor shall this Agreement be construed to create or grant rights, contractual or otherwise, to any 
other person or entity not a party to this Agreement. Each party shall remain solely responsible for the proper 
direction of its employees and an employee of one shall not be deemed an employee or borrowed servant of the 
other for any reason. 

9. No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing herein shall ever be construed to confer upon any third person any 
rights, benefits or remedies, contractual or otherwise, as a third party beneficiary by reason of this Agreement. 

  
 



 

 

10. Governmental Immunity. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to waive, modify or amend any legal 
defense available at law or in equity to either the City or its officers and employees. Neither the City, nor its 
officers and employees waive, modify or alter to any extent whatsoever the availability of the defense of 
governmental immunity under the laws of the State of Texas. 

11. Amendments and Change. No alteration, addition or amendment to the terms of this Agreement shall be 
made except by a formal written amendment hereto executed by both the Contractor and the City. 

12. Oral and Written Agreements. Any and all agreements heretofore made, if any, between the parties 
regarding the subject matter of this Agreement have been reduced to writing and are contained herein.  This 
Agreement states the sole and exclusive terms of agreement between the parties regarding the subject matter of this 
Agreement, and any and all prior agreements, regarding such subject matter, not set forth herein are null and void. 

13. Compliance with Laws. Contractor shall conduct operations under and provide all services pursuant to this 
Agreement in compliance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations, including municipal ordinances of the City. 

14. Texas Law Governs. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Texas and shall be performable in Williamson County, Texas. Venue shall lie exclusively in Williamson 
County, Texas. 

15. Interpretation.  Although drawn by City, both parties hereto expressly agree and assert that in the event of any 
dispute over its meaning or application, this Agreement shall be interpreted reasonably and fairly, and neither more 
strongly for nor against either party. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, both parties have caused this Agreement to be signed in their respective corporate 
names by duly authorized representatives, and the parties hereby bind themselves, their successors and assigns for 
the faithful and full performance of the terms and provisions hereof. 

EXECUTED on the latest date of the signatories indicated below. 

 
CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS                 ABESCAPE LANDSCAPING, LLC 
       
(CITY)   (CONTRACTOR) 
 

BY: _____________________  BY: ________________________ 
       Kent Cagle, City Manager  Name: ______________________ 
  Title:  _______________________ 
 
Date: ____________________  Date: _______________________   
 
 
 
 
ATTEST:   
 
________________________________ 
Debbie Haile, City Secretary 

  

   

 



AGENDA ITEM # 15 
 

 

Executive Summary 

November 19, 2015 

 

Council Agenda Subject:  Water Supply Update  
 
 Background:  Recent fall rains in the Lower Colorado River watershed have 
significantly increased the combined water supply in Lakes Travis and Buchanan from 
767,185 acre-feet on May 1st to 1,582,644 acre-feet of combined storage as of November 
10thth for a combined storage of 78% full, an increase of approximately 6% over the last 
30 days.  The attached Leander Water Use Graph compares recent water use in October 
2015 to October 2014.     
 
Origination:  Patrick A. Womack, P.E. Public Works Director 
 
Financial Consideration:  None 
 
Recommendation:   None 
 
Attachments: City of Leander Water Use Table & Graph 
 
Prepared by:  Patrick A. Womack, P.E. Public Works Director 



2014

Day September October October

1 7.40 8.00 6.55
2 8.30 8.10 4.93
3 8.00 7.20 3.71
4 7.20 7.40 3.88
5 7.40 6.60 4.61
6 8.20 8.10 4.34
7 6.50 8.20 5.81
8 8.00 9.10 5.85
9 7.50 5.60 5.51

10 6.10 7.10 5.30
11 5.30 8.10 2.12
12 7.00 7.50 2.91
13 6.70 8.00 3.45
14 7.20 8.60 4.55
15 7.40 8.50 5.17
16 7.70 7.10 4.80
17 7.90 7.20 4.06
18 6.80 7.30 3.95
19 8.50 6.20 3.12
20 7.60 7.40 4.02
21 6.20 7.10 5.01
22 9.00 5.20 5.16
23 8.70 5.10 6.00
24 7.30 3.40 3.89
25 7.00 4.30 3.57
26 6.80 4.40 4.00
27 7.40 5.30 4.17
28 7.60 3.50 5.09
29 7.90 3.80 5.89
30 8.60 1.90 5.14
31 2.70 3.66

2014

(MG) September October October

Total 223.2 198.0 140.2

Average 7.44 7.17 4.53

Peak Day 9.00 9.10 6.55

Year 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Month/Day 8/8 8/3 8/7 8/13 8/9 5/7 9/10 8/12

Peak Day (MG) 9.18 7.79 6.75 7.44 8.38 8.86 9.10 11.90
Annual (MG) 1,359 1,171 1,160 1,535 1,380 1,404 1,512 1,482 (Jan 1 - October 31, 2015)

2015

City of Leander Water Use (MG)

Historical Water Use

2015

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

7.00

8.00

9.00

10.00

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31

M
ill

io
n

s 
o

f 
G

al
lo

n
s 

Day 

CITY OF LEANDER WATER USE 

October 2015

October 2014



AGENDA ITEM # 16 

 

City Council Meeting 
November 19, 2015 

 
Executive Summary 

 
________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Discussion and possible action on priority annexation areas for fiscal 

year 2015-16. 
 
Background: Each year the City evaluates the need for annexations as a result of 

growth and development.  In 2013, the Council adopted a set of 
annexation priorities that included the annexation of two 
established residential areas, Falcon Oaks and Ridgmar Landing, 
and a large undeveloped area along the extension of Lakeline Blvd.  
Those annexations have either been completed or are in progress. 

 
 Based upon Council's discussion at its July 2014 retreat, the 

attached map includes potential areas for annexation during the 
current fiscal year.  These areas are primarily infill opportunities 
due to recent annexations or are expansions of previous corridor 
annexations to better reflect property boundaries and provide land 
use control along major corridors. 

 
Origination: Staff proposal based upon Council priorities from July 2014 retreat 
 
Financial  
Consideration: Depending upon which areas are chosen for annexation, there will 

be costs associated with the provision of services within those 
areas. 

 
Attachments: Proposed Annexation Priorities for FY 2015-16 
 
 
Prepared By: Tom Yantis, Assistant City Manager 
  
  



CR 279 N of CR 280
839.42 Ac.

N of Journey Pkwy
468.05 Ac.

Burleson
264.56 Ac.

Lakeline Area
517.95 Ac.

2243 Area
247.43 Ac.

CR 270 Area
192.93 Ac.

CR 279 S of CR 280
288.22 Ac.

NW of Wedemeyer
267.94 Ac.

Falcon Oaks
162.28 Ac.

SW of Reagans Overlook
262.58 Ac.

W of Garey Ranch
183.88 Ac.

W / SW of Palmera Ranch
124.03 Ac.

Southeastern ETJ
98.42 Ac.

S side CR 280 S / SW of Greatwood
187.06 Ac.

E of Savanna Ranch
76.49 Ac.

Vista Rock Dr Area
56.09 Ac.

Hero Way / CR 269
111.66 Ac.

N side CR 280 W of Greatwood
62.69 Ac.

San Gabriel River Park
43.18 Ac.

S side SH 29 E of Gabriels Overlook
52.32 Ac.

CR 268 / Kaufmann Loop / SH 29 Area
53.04 Ac.

S side SH 29 W of Gabriels Overlook
32.29 Ac.

Bagdad Rd Curve
15.36 Ac.

W of US 183 / S of High Gabriel West
29.92 Ac.

S Side SH 29 at Gabriels Overllook
4.85 Ac.

280 EST Site
1.55 Ac.

183A

CR 279

RM 2243

W SH 29

S U
S 

18
3

RO
NA

LD
 W

 R
EA

GA
N 

BL
VD

US
 18

3

E WHITESTONE BLVD

S BAGDAD RD

OLD 2243 WEST

N BELL BLVD

N 
LA

KE
LIN

E B
LV

D

CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

BA
GD

AD
 R

D

E CRYSTAL FALLS PKWY

W WHITESTONE BLVD

RM 1431

E SAN GABRIEL PKWY

W SAN GABRIEL PKWY

N BAGDAD RD N 
US

 18
3

E SOUTH ST

Boundary Agreement Lines

County Line

Annexation Type
Development Agreement

Involuntary

Voluntary

City of Leander - City Limits

City of Leander - 2 Mile and Voluntary E.T.J.

Note: The City of Leander and its officers, agents, and employees
do not represent this data to be correct or accurate in any respect
or that its use will not infringe on any copyright, patent, or other
rights of any third party.  The City shall have no liability or
responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, or usefulness of this
data; and makes no representation or warranty of merchantability or 
fitness for any purpose, either expressed or implied.  All risks of
using this data are assumed by the user and/or purchaser.

City of Cedar Park, Texas

Ë
0 2,000 4,000

Feet

Coordinate System: NAD 1983 StatePlane Texas Central FIPS 4203 Feet
Projection: Lambert Conformal Conic
Datum: North American 1983
False Easting: 2,296,583.3333
False Northing: 9,842,500.0000
Central Meridian: -100.3333
Standard Parallel 1: 30.1167
Standard Parallel 2: 31.8833
Latitude Of Origin: 29.6667
Units: Foot US

Approximate Area:
City Limits:                            29.80 Square Miles
E.T.J. outside of City Limits: 34.10 Square Miles
Total City Limits and E.T.J.:  63.90 Square Miles

FY 2015-2016

Annexation Priorities
City Of Leander, Texas

Year Involuntary 
Annexation 

Percentage as of 
10/09/2015

Carryover Percent 
(10 Percent minus 
Year's Involuntary 

Annexation 
Percentage)

2016 0.00 10.00
2015 0.00 10.00
2014 2.15 7.85

10/09/2015 City Limit Area is 19,077.21 Acres
27.85% Available (5313.00 Acres)

Name Acres Type
280 EST Site 1.55 Voluntary
San Gabriel River Park 43.18 Voluntary
Voluntary Total 44.73

Bagdad Rd Curve 15.36 Involuntary
CR 270 Area 192.93 Involuntary
W / SW of Palmera Ranch 124.03 Involuntary
SW of Reagans Overlook 262.58 Involuntary
N of Journey Pkwy 468.05 Involuntary
CR 279 N of CR 280 839.42 Involuntary
Southwestern ETJ 98.42 Involuntary
CR 279 S of CR 280 288.22 Involuntary
N Side CR 280 W of Greatwood 62.69 Involuntary
S side CR 280 S / SW of Greatwood 187.06 Involuntary
W of US 183 / S of High Gabriel West 29.92 Involuntary
S side SH 29 E of Gabriels Overlook 52.32 Involuntary
S side SH 29 W of Gabriels Overlook 32.29 Involuntary
NW of Wedemeyer 267.94 Involuntary
W of Garey Ranch 183.88 Involuntary
E of Savanna Ranch 76.49 Involuntary
Vista Rock Dr Area 56.09 Involuntary
S Side SH 29 at Gabriels Overlook 4.85 Involuntary
CR 268 / Kaufmann Lopp / SH 29 Area 53.04 Involuntary
Involuntary Total (without Falcon Oaks) 3295.58
Falcon Oaks 162.28 Involuntary
Involuntary Total (with Falcon Oaks) 3457.86

Areas Subject to Development Agreement
2243 Area 247.43 Dev Agmt
Hero Way / CR 269 111.66 Dev Agmt
Burleson 264.56 Dev Agmt
Lakeline Area 517.95 Dev Agmt
Development Agreement Total 1141.60

Overall Total 4644.19

tyantis
Typewritten Text
DRAFT 11-19-2015



AGENDA ITEM # 17 

 
Executive Summary 

11-19-15 

 

Agenda Subject:   Old Town Neighborhood Empowerment Zone and Incentive Program   

 
Background:  Establishing the Zone and pilot incentive program is designed to promote 

business development in the Old Town area to help establish it as a community 

commercial activity hub, aid in small business development and to provide the City with 

leverage to help direct that development. 

• Permits the City to invest up to $100,000 in Old Town business projects in the 

form of a forgivable loan/grant for needed infrastructure or down payment 

assistance for capital investment for business in the Old Town area. 

• Down payment loans are tied to and coordinated with bank funding, allowing the 

City to avoid direct payments to applicants and some financial due diligence those 

banks are better suited to pursue. 

•  Infrastructure loan investments are directly invested by the City, avoiding direct 

payments to the applicants. 

• Uses the increases in property tax revenues and sales tax revenues (excluding 

property tax revenues required to be paid into the Tax Increment Fund for the 

TIRZ) to generate loan repayment funds. 

 

Origination:   The idea originates from staff discussions and is somewhat patterned after 

programs associated with national Main Street initiatives. 

 
Recommendation:   Staff recommends approval and funding of the program at the 

proscribed pilot program level. 



 
Attachments:  Resolution establishing the Old Town Neighborhood Empowerment 

Zone.  Ordinance establishing the Old Town Development Incentives Program and Fund.    

 
Prepared by:  Mark S. Willis, Economic Development Director 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 
 

 AN RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ESTABLISHING THE OLD TOWN 
NEIGHBORHOOD EMPOWERMENT ZONE; PROVIDING EFFECTIVE DATE AND 
OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSES, AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS. 

 
 Whereas, Chapter 378, Texas Local Government Code, authorizes the City of Leander, 
Texas (the “City”) to create a neighborhood empowerment zone if the City determines that the 
creation of the zone would promote an increase in economic development in the zone; 
 
 Whereas, the City Council adopted a revised comprehensive plan on October 15, 2015 that 
establishes one of the City’s short-term priorities being the development of the Old Town section 
of the City as a pedestrian-friendly commercial, civic, and cultural center;  
 
 Whereas, the City Council is establishing an economic incentive program under Chapter 
380, Texas Local Government Code, (the “Old Town Development Incentives Program”) to 
promote local economic development, to stimulate business and commercial activity in the City, 
to encourage the location and expansion of businesses in the Old Town section of Leander, to 
create a pedestrian-friendly and attractive commercial area, and to preserve the character of 
the structures in Old Town;  
 
 Whereas, the City Council desires to create a neighborhood empowerment zone covering 
the Old Town section of the City as described in Section 2 (the “Zone”), for the purpose of offering 
economic development incentives authorized by Chapter 378, Texas Local Government Code as 
part of the Old Town Development Incentives Program; 
 
 Whereas, the City Council finds and determines that the creation of the Zone will promote 
an increase in economic development in the zone by allowing for economic incentives to 
encourage businesses to locate and expand in the City, which creates opportunities for increased 
sales tax revenues, property tax revenues, and employment; 
  
 Whereas, the City Council finds that the creation of the Zone benefits and is for the public 
purpose of increasing the public health, safety, and welfare of the persons in the City, by allowing 
economic incentives to encourage the renovation and repair of buildings in Old Town, the 
preserving and enhancement of the aesthetic appearance of Old Town, and creation of 
pedestrian-friendly areas in the City; 
 
 Whereas, the City Council finds that the creation of the Zone satisfies the requirements of 
Section 312.202, Tax Code, in that the area within the Zone will be reasonably likely as a result of 
the designation to contribute to the retention or expansion of primary employment or to attract 
major investment in the Zone that would be a benefit to the property and that would contribute to 
the economic development of the City; 
 



 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1. Findings of Fact. The above and foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and 
correct and are incorporated herein as findings of fact.  
 
Section 2. Old Town Neighborhood Empowerment Zone Created.  The Old Town 
Neighborhood Empowerment Zone is hereby created.  The Zone shall cover and include all land 
located within the S3 Old Town Sector as shown on the Leander Sector Map in the SmartCode.  
The City may exercise those powers, in addition to any other powers that the City may exercise, 
that are set forth in Section 374.004, Texas Local Government Code, as amended from time to 
time, including, but not limited to the following: 
 

(a) Waiving or adopting fees related to the construction of buildings in the Zone, including 
but not limited to fees related to the inspection of buildings and impact fees; 

(b) Entering into agreements, for a period of not more than 10 years, for the purpose of 
benefiting the Zone, for refunds of municipal sales tax on sales made in the Zone; 

(c) Enter into agreements abating municipal property taxes on property in the Zone 
subject to the duration limits of Section 312.204, Tax Code, and subject to compliance 
with Chapter 311, Tax Code and the agreements, ordinances, policies, and regulations 
governing the Tax Reinvestment Zone Number One, City of Leander, Texas; and 

(d) Set baseline performance standards, such as the Energy Star Program as developed by 
the Department of Energy, to encourage the use of alternative building materials that 
address concerns relating to the environment or to the building costs, maintenance, or 
energy consumption. 
 

Section 3. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 
passage and publication in accordance with the provisions of the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code and the City 
Charter.  
 
Section 4. Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on the _____day of _________, 2015. 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 
 



ORDINANCE NO. _________ 
 

 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ESTABLISHING THE OLD TOWN 
DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVES PROGRAM; ESTABLISHING THE OLD TOWN 
DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVES FUND; AMENDING THE 2015/2016 BUDGET TO 
FUND THE PROGRAM; PROVIDING EFFECTIVE DATE AND OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSES, AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS. 

 
 Whereas, the City Council of the City of Leander, Texas (the “City”) adopted a revised 
comprehensive plan on October 15, 2015 that establishes one of the City’s short-term priorities 
being the development of the Old Town section of the City as a pedestrian-friendly commercial, 
civic, and cultural center;  
 
 Whereas, the City Council desires to establish an economic development incentive 
program under Chapter 380, Texas Local Government Code, to promote local economic 
development, to stimulate business and commercial activity in the City, to encourage the 
location and expansion of businesses in the Old Town section of Leander, to create a 
pedestrian-friendly and attractive commercial area, and to preserve the character of the 
structures in Old Town; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council finds that the Old Town Development Incentives Program 
benefits the public health and welfare by promoting the economic development of the City, 
encouraging businesses to locate and expand in the City, creating opportunities for increased sales 
tax and employment, encouraging the renovation and repair of buildings in Old Town, preserving 
and enhancing the aesthetic appearance of Old Town, and creating pedestrian-friendly areas in 
the City; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEANDER, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1. Findings of Fact.  The above and foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and 
correct and are incorporated herein as findings of fact.  
 
Section 2. Old Town Development Incentives Program Established.  Article 1.09 of the City of 
Leander Code of Ordinances (the “Code”) is hereby amended by adding Division 3, entitled “Old 
Town Development Incentives Program” to read as follows: 
 

Division 3.  Old Town Development Incentives Program 
 

Sec. 1.09.041   Program Established; Purpose 
The Old Town Development Incentives Program (the “Program”) is hereby established 
for the purpose of encouraging the location and expansion of businesses and 
stimulating commercial activity in the Old Town section of Leander, creating a 



pedestrian-friendly and attractive commercial area, and preserving and enhancing the 
aesthetic appearance of Old Town.   
 
Sec. 1.09.042    Authority; Findings 
 
This division is adopted pursuant to the general police powers of the city, the city 
charter, Chapter 380, Tex. Loc. Gov’t. Code, and the constitution of the state.  The City 
Council finds that the Old Town Development Incentives Program benefits the public 
health and welfare by promoting the economic development of the City, encouraging 
businesses to locate and expand in the City, creating opportunities for increased sales tax 
and employment, encouraging the renovation and repair of buildings in Old Town, 
preserving and enhancing the aesthetic appearance of Old Town, and creating 
pedestrian-friendly development in the City. 
 

 Sec. 1.09.043  Development Incentives 
 

Qualified applicants will be eligible for the development incentives described in this 
section and other incentives the City Council may approve.  The decision to grant 
development incentives, and the number and combination of incentives granted, shall 
be within the City Council’s sole discretion.   
 
(1) Loans:  Loans of up to $100,000 to be used for down payment on property in Old 

Town and/or rehabilitation, repair, and improvements to the property and 
structures located on the property. The loan funds will be paid directly to the bank 
and/or contractors, as appropriate, based on approved invoices in the case of 
contractors. Loan payments may be forgiven if certain threshold increases in 
property values and sales tax revenues are met.  The loan will be secured by at least 
a secondary lienholder position on the property. 
 

(2) Neighborhood Empowerment Zone Incentives:  Incentives set forth in Resolution 
Number ____ and Chapter 378, Texas Local Government Code, due to the property 
being located in the Old Town Neighborhood Empowerment Zone. 

 
(3) City Installation of Utilities to Project.  Extension of water and/or sewer utilities by 

the City. 
 
 Section 1.09.044  Application; Eligibility 
 

To be considered for development incentives under the Program, applicants must 
submit an application to the City in accordance with Section 1.09.037(a), and must meet 
the following minimum criteria.  Information demonstrating that the applicant meets 
the following criteria shall be included with the application. 
 
(1) Applicants must submit a complete, written application. 



(2) Applicants must demonstrate that they have financing for the project from a bank 
or other lending institution acceptable to the City.   

(3) Applicants must provide a business plan and demonstrate that the increase in value 
of the property (and increase in sales tax revenue, if applicable) will pay back the 
loan within a 5-7 year period. 

(4) The business must be located in the Old Town section of the City, which is that area 
designated as S3 Old Town Sector on the Leander Sector Map in the SmartCode. 

(5) The proposed development will comply with the SmartCode.   
 

Sec. 1.09.045  Review and Approval of Applications 
 
(a) Applications will be reviewed by the City as provided in Sections 1.09.037(b) and (c).  

 
(b) If the city council determines in its sole discretion that it is in the best interest of the 

city to grant incentives to a particular applicant, the City Council will approve the 
terms and conditions of an economic development incentive agreement, which 
must, at a minimum be in writing and contain the following terms: 

 
(1) Those terms set forth in Section 1.09.038(b). 
(2) The performance criteria the applicant must meet as a condition of receiving the 

development incentive. 
(3) That the property owner will cooperate to provide property tax and sales tax 

information to the City. 
(4) That the property will be developed in accordance with the SmartCode. 
(5) Terms and documents necessary to secure the loan with a lien on the property 

and authorized uses of the loan proceeds, if a loan is to granted to the applicant. 
(6) Other terms and conditions determined appropriate by the City Council. 

 
Sec. 1.09.046  Old Town Development Incentive Fund 
 
There is hereby established the Old Town Development Incentive Fund.  The funds 
deposited into the Fund pursuant to this Section and as authorized from time to time by 
the City Council shall be used for development incentives granted under the Program.  
For properties for which development incentives have been approved under the 
Program, the Finance Director will deposit amounts equal to the sales tax revenue 
produced from the business and fifty percent (50%) of the increase in property tax 
revenues produced from the improved properties, as such revenues are received from 
time to time.  In no event shall funds required to be deposited into the Tax Increment 
Fund for the Reinvestment Zone Number One, City of Leander, Texas, be deposited in 
the Old Town Development Incentive Fund. 

 
Section 3. Budget Amendment.  The budget for fiscal year 2015/2016 is hereby amended to 
transfer $250,000 from the Utility Fund Capital Improvement Fund Projects to the Old Town 
Development Incentive Fund. 

Comment [PS1]: Confirm accurate 
descripton. 



 
Section 4. Conflicting Ordinances.  Article 1.09 of the Code is amended as provided herein.  
All ordinances or parts thereof conflicting or inconsistent with the provisions of this ordinance as 
adopted herein, are hereby amended to the extent of such conflict.  In the event of a conflict or 
inconsistency between this ordinance and any other code or ordinance of the City, the terms and 
provisions of this ordinance shall govern. 
 
Section 5. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 
passage and publication in accordance with the provisions of the Tex. Loc. Gov't. Code and the City 
Charter.  
 
Section 6. Open Meetings.  It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at 
which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the 
time, place and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on the _____day of _________, 2015. 
 
THE CITY OF LEANDER, TEXAS ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ _____________________________ 
Christopher Fielder, Mayor     Debbie Haile, City Secretary 



AGENDA ITEM # 18 
 

 

 
Executive Summary 

 
November 19, 2015 

 
 
Agenda Subject: Discussion of proposed amendments to the Composite Zoning 

Ordinance, Subdivision Ordinance, and Sign Ordinance. 
 
Background: City staff is proposing several amendments to the Composite 

Zoning Ordinance, Subdivision Ordinance, and Sign Ordinance to 
provide clarification to the ordinance.   

 
Origination: City of Leander Planning Department  
 
Financial  
Consideration: None 
 
Recommendation: The Planning & Zoning Commission recommended directing staff 

to move forward with drafting the proposed amendments with the 
addition of the following amendment at the November 12, 2015 
meeting. 
 SIGN ORDINANCE:  Provide regulations for the brightness 

level and animation of EMC signs. 
  
Attachments: 1. Summary of Proposed Amendments. 
  
Prepared By:   Tom Yantis, AICP 
 Assistant City Manager 11/13/2015 
 



COMPOSITE ZONING ORDINANCE 
 
ARTICLE I – GENERAL 
Section 6 – Definitions 

 Update lot width measurement definition. 
Section 7 – Exemptions 

 Change the minimum lot size to be exempt from the subdivision requirements from 5 acres 
to 10 acres. 
 

ARTICLE III – USE COMPONENTS 
Section 1 – SFR Single-Family Rural 

 Change in home day care to limit number of children to 5 to match the fire code. 
 Add temporary parking associated with model homes and sales trailer prior to the 

completion of model homes. 
Section 14 – HC Heavy Commercial 

 Add Gambling/Gaming Machines 
Section 16 – PUD Planned Unit Development 

 Include additional information for PUD criteria  
 
ARTICLE V- SITE COMPONENTS 
Section 3 – Type 3:  Increase the distance requirement for gas stations from residential. 
 
ARTICLE VI - SITE STANDARDS 
Section 1 – Landscaping, Tree Preservation & Protection, and Screening Requirements 

 Define tree survey requirements – only survey where construction will occur associated with 
residential uses. 

 Clarify soil specifications – define soil composition 
 Screening of outdoor storage – currently ordinance permits privacy fencing.  Update to 

require masonry when adjacent to arterials or collectors. 
 Add screening and distance from residential requirements for lift stations. 
 Clarify disturbance zones during construction plan phase. 

 
Section 3 – Off-Street Parking Requirements 

 Add old SmartCode provisions regarding shared parking ratios. 
 Add parking requirements for daycares 
 Add provisions for senior apartments/housing 

 
Section 6 – Setbacks 

 Increase rear setbacks and decrease front setbacks (tables need to be updated too) 
 
Section 7 – Drainage & Detention Facilities 

 Update masonry requirements associated with pond walls.  Consider defining visible and 
providing more specifics regarding textured. 

 
Section 12 – Outdoor Lighting 

 Clarify that lighting must be dark sky compliant 
 
Section 14 – Additional Multi-Family and Non-Residential Standards 

 Masonry walls are required for screening outdoor storage, etc. 
 Clarify the masonry wall requirements along major corridors.  Prohibit stucco and precast 

concrete permitted on screening walls.  Instead of prohibiting stucco, consider limiting 
to a certain percentage.  Define pre-cast concrete panels instead of prohibiting 
panels. 

 

Staff Proposal / Real Estate Advisory Committee Comments / P&Z Comments 



Section 16 – Fences 
 Clarify provisions for 8’ privacy fences (provide minimum slope requirements or eliminate 

provision). 
ARTICLE VII – ARCHITECTURAL COMPONENTS 
Section 2 – Type B 

 Clarify masonry percentage on second floor.   
General – Panels are permitted with board and batten application 
 
ARTICLE VIII – ARCHITECTURAL STANDARDS 
General – Require a masonry calculation table at the building permit stage. 
 
ARTICLE IX – SITE DEVELOPMENT 
Section 1 – require Minor Site Development Permit for Brush Clearing.  Instead of requiring a 
permit, provide a list of requirements in the ordinance. 
 
SUBDIVISION ORDINANCE 
 
ARTICLE I – GENERAL 
Section 8 – Make consistent with Building Code with regarding the timing of acceptance of 
infrastructure and the issuance of building permits. 
 
ARTICLE II – PROCEDURE 
Section 22 – Preliminary Plat:  Update tree preservation requirements to match the Composite 
Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Section 23 – Construction Plans:  Add provisions for construction plan permit. 
 
Section 28 – Completion of Improvements:  Make consistent with Building Code with regarding the 
timing of acceptance of infrastructure and the issuance of building permits. 
 
ARTICLE III – DESIGN STANDARDS 
Section 49 – Riparian Corridors:  update section 
 
ARTICLE IV – IMPROVEMENTS 
Section 61 – Clarify that the park land requirements apply to projects within the ETJ. 
 
SIGN ORDINANCE 

 
1. Clarify the number of pylon signs.  Allow large commercial projects close to major 

intersections to have pylon signs. 
2. Clarify Master Sign Plan provisions – height stays the same  
3. Update wall sign size requirements. 
4. Provide maximum wall sign for signs that do not face public ROW. 
5. Provide regulations for the brightness level and animation of EMC signs. 

 

Staff Proposal / Real Estate Advisory Committee Comments / P&Z Comments 





AGENDA ITEM # 19 

 

 
Executive Summary 
November 19, 2015 

 
 

Agenda Subject:   Consider reappointments to the following Boards/Commissions: 
 

• Ethics Commission 
• Parks & Recreation Advisory Board 
• Library Foundation Board 

 
 
Background:  All of the members who are currently serving on these 
Boards/Commissions have been contacted to ask if they wanted to be reappointed and 
continue serving.  
  
Origination:   
 
Recommendation:  N/A 

 
Attachments: List of Board Members  
 

 
Prepared by:  Debbie Haile, TRMC, City Secretary 
 



BOARD OR COMMISSION Term Expiring

ETHICS COMMISSION (3 yr terms to coincide with council places)
    Steve Kuwitzky - Place 1 Jul-13

    Gerald Perez - Place 2 Jan-15
Glenn Goulet - Place 3 Oct-18

    Vic Villarreal - Place 4 Jun-14
    James Smit - Place 5 Aug-13

   Steve Kovacs - Place 6 Jan-15
    Richard Shirley - Place 7 Jun-15

PARKS & RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD (3 yr terms)
    Tammy Holk-Johnson Oct-14

Jayne Serna Oct-14
Marcia Back Jul-15

LIBRARY FOUNDATION BOARD (3 yr terms)
Gary Anderson Jul-15

Julie Kimball May-15
Melissa Durham May-15

Diane Hess Dec-14



Wants to be Does not want to be 
Reappointed Reappointed

X
X

X
X
X
X

X
X
X

X
X
X
X




















	Agenda
	Worksession Item # 1
	Item # 5
	Item # 6
	Item # 7
	Item # 8
	Item # 9
	Item # 10
	Item # 11
	Item # 12
	Item # 13
	Item # 14
	Item # 15
	Item # 16
	Item # 17
	Item # 18
	Item # 19
	Item # 23



